
R.EPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF

Enhanc Accou

'T'HF

R-GENERAI

l.l (-)t

SS.GA4IJ I Yn

PA RLIAI\4 ENT

oArE: l6 Am Ml
ltot o
$ l,^r.+rr 4\ no.$*:t-

fArLr1lr.c.PlrfF KEN YA ntTl
,IBRARY

OF

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

ON

NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR NOMADIC
EDUCATION IN KENYA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE,2023

qrft0 srL

t
J
II

,t

J



rL 8 JAI! 2rl?':

I

(
,II

NA( ONEX

NATIONAL COUNCIL

FOR NOMADIC EDUCATION IN KENYA

(\A( ()NtK,

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30JUNE 2023.

Prepared in accordance with the Accrual Basis of Accounting Method under the

lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (lP5A5)



t
Natlonal Council for Nomadi. Educatlon ln Kenya (['{ACONEK)

Annual Reports and Flnanclal Statements for th€ year cnded ,o June ro23

1. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms..".

2. Key Entity Information and ManagemenL-.....

3. Key Management Team -x'lIl

5. Statement of performance against predetermined obiectives for FY 2022/2023 -...---.-.-.....-.".....,........... ro(

5. Corporate Covernance Statement

It

7. Management Discussion and Analysis xtv

8. Environmental and Sustainability Reportin9................. ------...:o<iv

9. Report ofthe Management ................Ktx

10. Stetement of Management Responsibilities....-.-...... ffil

11. Report ofthe tndependent Auditor NACONEK For the year ended 30 fune 2023 ,o(xll

12. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2023

x

1

?

4

7

13. Statement ofFinanclal Posidon as at 30 June 2023

14. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30 fune 2023

17. Notes to the Financial Statements

15. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

16. Statement of Comparlson of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year ended 30 lune 2023 ".'..'.'......-..- 5

lt



t

AfDB

ASAL

APBET

AAK
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BOMs

CDE
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African Development Bank

Arid and Semi-Arid Lands

Alternative Provision of Basic Education and Training
Associated Automobile of Kenya

Bachelor of Arts
Bachelor of Education

Board(s) of Management

County D irector of Education
Chief Executive Officer
Central Bank of Kenya

Chartered Institute of Procurement & Supply
Cabinet Secretary

Civil Society Organization(s]
Corporate Social Responsibility

Certifi ed Public Accountant
Digital Attendance Application
Danish Refugee Council

Education-Above-All
Education -for-All
Ed ucatio n -i n- Emergen cies

Enterp rise resource planning
Financial Year
Head of State Commendation

lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

lnformation and communications technology
lnformation, Education and Communication IMaterialsJ
International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Kenya Primary Schools Head Teachers Association
Kenya Private Sector Alliance

Kenya Shilling(s)
Kenya Secondary Schools Heads Association

Kenya Institute of Supply Management

Kenya National Qualifications Authority
Kenya Primary Education Equity in Learning

Master of Arts (Degreel

Ministry of Education

Micro and Small Enterprise Authority
Medium Tem Expenditure Framework(sJ

Medium Term PIan

National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya

National Drought Management Authority
National Education Management Information System
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NESSP

NIWFESS

National Education Sector Strategic Plan

NAC0NEK Integrated Wash Food and Energy for Sustainable

Schools

National Treasury
Office of the Auditor General

0ffice of the Controller of Budget

Out-of-School Children
0ccupational Safety and Health Act of 2007
Parents Association(s)

Performance Contract(sJ

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies
State Corporations Advisory Committee
Sub County Director of Education

School Meals Programme
Strategic Objective

Training Needs Assessment

United Nations Children's Fund
World Bank
World Food Programme

NT

OAG

0coB
OOSC

OSHA

PAs

PCs

PFM

PPE

PSASB

SAGAs

SCAC

SCDE

SMP

s0
TNA

UNICEF

WB

WFP

-t



National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended 3o June zo23

Access
CBOs

Credit transfer

Comparative Year

Duksi

Entrepreneurship

Fiduciary
Management-

Lifelong learning

Non-Formal
Education

Nomad

Madrassa

PLAR

Opportunities learners and trainees are given to acquire education.
Community based organizations [CBOs) are nonprofit groups that work
at a local level to improve life for residents.

Means the vertical, horizontal or diagonal relocation of credits towards
a qualification or part qualification in the same or different levels,

programmes, departments or institutions.

Means the prior period.

Refers to an Islamic memorization school

ls the process of doing something new and something different for the
purpose ofcreating wealth for an individual and adding value to society.

Members of Management directly entrusted with the responsibility of
fi nancial resources of the organisation

Learning that takes place in all contexts of life: from a life-wide, life-deep
and lifelong perspectives. It includes learning behaviours and obtaining
knowledge, understanding attitudes, values and competencies for
personal growth, social and economic well-being democratic
citizenship, cultural identity and employability.

Any organized, systematic and quality education and training programs

outside the formal school system, that are consciously aimed at meeting

specific learning needs of children, youth and adults.

People who move from one place to another, rather than setding in one

location.

This refers to an Islamic college, literally a "place of instruction,"
especially instruction in religious law.

This an acronym for Prior Learning Assessment and Recognition which

is also referred to as Recognition of Prior Learning. It is a process used

to identify, assess and certify RPL for a candidate's knowledge, skills and

competencies acquired in non-formal or informal learnin& such as work
or life experiences, against prescribed standards or learning outcomes.

tv
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The establishment of National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya INACONEK] was

informed by twin documents of Nomadic Education in Kenya, 2010 and Session Paper No.

74 of 2012. Further, the Council was established under Section 94 (1] and the 6th Schedule

of the Basic Education Act of 201"3 and officially launched in May 2015. The Council is a Semi-

Autonomous Government Agency in the State Department of Basic Education of the Ministry

of Education.

The global Sustainable Development Goal No. 4 aims at "Ensuring Inclusive and Equitoble

Quality Education and Lilelong learning for all by 2030". It calls for closer attention to

hard to reach groups, gender equaliry, girls and women and the marginalized. The nomadic

regions, Pockets of Poverfy areas and Urban Informal Settlements of Kenya are identified as

the most marginalized and hard to reach with conventional education. The government of
Kenya has since independence committed itself to provisions of education to all its citizen

as a national duty and partly in line with fulfilling its international commitment in education

agenda.

Challenges faced by populations in the nomadic regions, Pockets ofPoverty areas and Urban

lnformal Settlements of Kenya revolve largely around impacts of climate change. Impacts of
climate change prompt emergency nomadism which is an economic activity and therefore

mobile in nature and distance to education institutions makes the provision of formal

education difficult. Persistent insecurity in some ofthe nomadic regions, Pockets of Poverty

areas and Urban Informal Settlements of Kenya, higher teacher turn over due to insecurity
ad hardship, limited monitoring and supervision of learning institutions as well as wildlife-
human conflict

The government of Kenya is cognizant of the fact that despite massive investment in

education in the last fifty-two years, over 2 million school age [6-13 years) are still out of
school with nomadic regions, Pockets of Poverty areas and Urban [nformal Settlements of
Kenya accounting for over 8Oo/o of them. The major constraints to the participation of

children from nomadic regions, Pockets of Poverty areas and Urban Informal Settlements of
Kenya in formal and non-formal education are:

a Their constant migration /movements in search of water and pasture in the case

of the pastoralists and fish in the case of the fishing nomads;

l The centrality of child labour in their production system, thus making it extremely

difficult to allow their children to participate in formal schooling;

a The irrelevance of the school curriculum which is tailored to meet the needs of
sedentary groups and thus ignores the educational needs of nomadic people;
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I Their physical isolation since they operate in a mostly inaccessible physical

environment; and

I Land tenure system that makes it difficult for the nomads to acquire land and

settle in one place.

Besides these constraints, available studies indicate that children in these areas record poor
completion rates and post poor learning outcomes compared to children from the rest ofthe
country. NACONEK aspires to meet the education needs ofthe nomadic regions, Pockets of
Poverfy areas and Urban [nformal Settlements of Kenya by ensuring that their traditions,
values and norms are adequately addressed. The aim is to achieve Education for All without
forcing the target populations to choose between schooling against other priorities.

Legal Status of NACONEK

The establishment of NACONEK is contained in;

ti) Sessional Paper No, 2 of 2015 on reforming education and training sector in Kenya
(iil Sessional Paper No.8 of October 2012 on the "Policy for suitable development of

Northern Kenya and other arid lands" releasing our full potential"
(iii) The Basic Education Act2013, section 94 and the Sixth 6th Schedule
(iu) The Policy Framework for Nomadic Education in Kenya, 2010
(v) The National Education Sector Strategic Plan (NESSP)

(vi] The Constitution ofKenya, 2010
- Article 55(bJ also stipulates that ".... the state shall put in place affirmative

action programs designed to ensure that minorities and marginalised
groups are provided with special opportunities in education and economic

fi elds "

- Basic Education Act 2013, Section 39 (CJ states that it shall be the duty of
the Cabinet Secretary to.... ensure that children belonging to marginalized,
vulnerable or disadvantaged groups are not discriminated against and

prevented from pursuing and completing basic education."

Council Members

Since April 2021 to date, NACONEK has not had a substantive membership to the Council to
provide the desired policy guidance, strategic direction and general oversight on the

operations of the Council.

Secretariat

The Secretary/Chief Executive officer heads the secretariat team. The Secretary is the

Accounting 0fficer, responsible for the day-to-day administration and management of the

National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEKJ. NACONEK has a Director -
Head ofCorporate Services working with other senior officers including Head ofFinance and

Accounts, Head of Supply Chain Management, tlead of Administration, Head of Human
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Resource Management, Head of ICT, and Head of Public Communications supported with

nvelve (12J other cadres including six (6) Supply Chain Management Officers, five (5J

Accountants, two [2] Records Management 0fficers, three (3) Assistant 0ffice

Administrators, three (3J Clerical Officers and five (5) Drivers.

Mandate

The Sixth Schedule of the Education Act 2013 spells out the functions of NACONEK as

follows:

(i) Initiate the development, implementation and review of policies on all matters

relating to education in the ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban

lnformal Settlements of Kenya. e.g. Nomadic Education policy;

(iiJ Mobilize funds and other resources from various sources for the development of

nomadic education in order to support relevant activities of the Council;

(iiiJ lnstitutionalize mechanisms for effective coordination, monitoring and

evaluation ofthe activities ofagencies involved in the provision of education in the

ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban lnformal Settlements of Kenya;

(ivJ Implement guidelines and ensure geographical spread of education activities

and targets for the ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban Informal

Settlements of Kenya;

(v] Establish appropriate linkages and partnerships with other participating

departments and age ncies;

(viJ Determine standards and skills to be attained in schools and institutions of

learning within the ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban Informal

Senlements ofKenya and review such standards from time to time; and

[vii) Collate, analyse and publish information on education activities in the ASAL

areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban lnformal Settlements of Kenya.

The Council envisions to have "a well-educated population in the nomadic regions, pockets

of poverty areas and urban informal settlements proactively engaged in the transformation

of Kenya".

The Council strives on a daily routine "to coordinate and strengthen the management,

administration and delivery of quality basic education to populations in the ASAL areas,

pockets of poverty regions and urban informal settlements of Kenya."

v
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In carrying out its mandate, the Council upholds the following core values:

. Respect for the right ofthe child
o IntegriW
. Team work
. Transparency and accountability
o Professionalism
. Respect of diversity
. Gender equity
o Continual learning

Value Proposition

While delivering its services, the Council aspires to meet the education needs ofpopulations
in the nomadic regions, Pockets of Poverty areas and Urban Informal Settlements of Kenya
by ensuring that their traditions, values and norms are adequately addressed in pursuance
of its mandate.

Philosophy

When carrying out its mandate, the Council strives to achieve Education for All (EFA) goal
without forcing the target populations to choose between schooling against other priorities.

Core Objectives

(i) Strategic Obiective 1: To create and strengthen effective mechanisms for
coordination, knowledge management and partnerships with various stakeholders
to develop education in nomadic counties.

[ii) Strategic Obiective 2: To enhance advocacy, social mobilization and stakeholders'
engagement for the development of education in nomadic counties.

(iii) Strategic Obiective 3: To coordinate development, expansion and monitoring of
innovations in the delivery of quality education in nomadic counties.

(ivJ Strategic Obiective 4: To strengthen institutional governance and management of
education in nomadic counties.

(v) Strategic Obiective 5: To review and promote the development, adaptation and
implementation of policies and a curriculum that is relevant and appropriate to the
nomadic way of life and livelihood.

(vil Strategic Obiective 6: To strengthen institutional capacity and operations of
NACONEK.

v l
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(iJ ASAL (Nomadic) reCons in the counties of West Pokot, Turkana, Samburu, Isiolo,

Marsabit, Garissa Waiir. Mandera, Tana River, Lamu, Narok Kaiiado, Baringo and

Homa Bay (fishing nomadsJ.

(ii) Pockets of Poverty areas of Elgeyo Marakrret, Kilifi, Kwale, Kitui, Taita Taveta,

Nyeri, Laikipia, Makueni, Nyamira and Tharaka Nithi.

(iii) Urban informal settlemene of Kelya in the cities of Nairobi, Mombasa and Kisumu

and in the four (4) former municipalities of Nakuru, Eldoret Thika, Migorl, Siaya and

Kitale.

(c) Kcv Managernent

The NACONEK's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

L. Secretary/ CEO Harun M. Yusuf, HSC

3. Deputy Director - Head of Corporate Services Murumba S. Chiuli

5. Deputy Director of Education - SMP Coordinator Millicent Ochola

7. Accountant II George G. Gatheru

tx
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The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 3Oth

lune 2022 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No.

1.

)

3.

4.

5.

Designation

Secretary/ CEO

Deputy Director of Education

Deputy Director - Head of Corporate Services

Deputy Director - Flnance & Accounts

Deputy Director of Education - SMP

Coordinator

Head Supply Chain Management

Accountant Il

Name

Harun M. Yusui HSC

Emis Muthoni Nieru

Murumba S. Chiuli

CPA lbrahim Farah Dagane

Millicent 0chola

Justus Kirimi Mwiti

George G. Gatheru

6.

7.

The Council through its Committees and the Secretariat has put in place systems aimed at

enhancing governance, transparency, and accountability. The council has four committees

that provided fiduciary oversight arrangements:

i) Finance Committee

The Committee is responsible for the Council's achievement of its strategic objectives by

ensuring that annual work plans are implemented. The Committee ensures that the Council's

budget and procurement plan are in line with the strategic plan and the council's mandate

as outlined by law. However, this Committee is not in place following the expiry of the

mandate of the previous Council.

ii) Human Resource & Administration Committee

The Committee is responsible for human resource management matters including

recruitment and succession management. The Committee monitors, evaluates and makes

recommendations with respect to policies and strategic matters relating to the Council's

human resource. However, following the expiry of the mandate ofthe previous Council, this

Committee is not yet in Place.
X
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iii) Audit & Risk Management Committee

The committee is responsible for managing the organization's risk, ensuring compliance to

all appticable laws and regulations, and spearheading good governance practices by the

council members and the Secretariat. The committee is responsible for monitoring the

Council's internal control environment and provide advice on areas of improvement. The

Committee oversees the operations of the Council to ensure that the set policies and

procedures are adhered to. Following the expiry ofthe mandate of the previous Council, this

Committee is not in place.

iv) Policy, Stratery & Partnerships Committee

This committee is responsible for facilitating policy review, formulation and development as

well as estabtish strategic direction for the council. Additionally, the committee is

responsible for establish partnership and thus respective Development Partners also

provide their operational requirements and guidelines that clearly spell out fiduciary

arrangements that revolve around accountability, verification, and value for money. This

committee is not in place following the expiry of the mandate of the previous council.

P.O. Box 30040 - 00100
Uchumi House, 6th, 7th & 1Oth Floors

Along Aga Khan Walk
Nairobi, Kenya

Telephone: (254) 20 22 4t201
E-mail: infonaconek@education.go.ke

Website: www.naconek@education.go.ke

1. National Bank of Kenya

Kenyatta Avenue Branch

P.0. Box 72866-00200
Nairobi, KENYA

2. HFC Bank

P.O. Box 72866-00200
Nairobi, KENYA
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lrl lrtrlcpr.ttrlt.nt rlrrlrttrr
Auditor-General
0ffice ofthe Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.0. Box 30084
GPo 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(ll I'rinrip,rl [.t'gal -lrlr rser

The Attorney General

State Law Offtce and Department of |ustice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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Harun is an accomplished, educationist; he holds a Master

of Arts (Pro ject ManagementJ from University of Nairobi

and a Bachelor of Education (History and lslamic Studies)

from Moi UniversitY.

Prior to joining NACONEK, he served as Chairman,

Garissa County Public Service Board from f uly 2013- luty

ZO77 . He worked with as a teacher in various capacities

between fune 1994 and September 2012. From a

classroom teacher in county High School, he rose to a head Teacher of Garissa High to a

Senior Principal of Garissa High School and Wajir High School'

Through short trainings and work-related assignments, he has travelled widely across the

gtobe including South Africa, u.S.A, France, fapan, Finland, united Arab Emirates and

Israel. During the 18 years (Lgg4-2012) of teaching, he served in various portfolios:

Provincial Chairman-Kenya Secondary Schools Heads Association (KESSHA), North

Eastern Province. He was a member of the National Executive Committee of the KESSHA

and a member of Provincial Education Board.

He has turned around the entire concept of policy making in the education sector in

particular of education in the ASALS and the marginalized regions of Kenya'

This is evidence through the implementation of the Naconek Integrated water, Food and

Energy for Sustainable Schools (NIWFESS) tn the ASAL which is informing policy from a

practical perspective.

Prior to joining NACONEK, Emis served as Deputy

Director of Education in the Ministry of Basic Education

and Early Leaning. She is currently working as the Deputy

Director of Education and deputizes the Chief Executive

Officer. Emis Njeru is the Coordinator for Policy and

Partnerships and Education component at NACONEK.

I
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rJ

\

x I



National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended jo June 2o2J

Murumba Chiuli is the Head of Corporate Services in NACONEK.

He has vast experience of 30 years in National Administration,
from both the field and the Ministries. He was the first County
Secretary for County Government of Bungoma, where he was
seconded in the first devolution cycle, and returned back to the
docket of Senior Deputy Secretary in the Ministry of Public
Service then to the Ministry of ICT and Youth Affairs. He holds a

BA Hons in Political Science and History from the University of
Nairobi (1990J. An MBA in Strategic Management from European Business School -
London 2009. He is a member of Kenya Association of Public Administration and
Management (KAPAM) No. 1026.

Mr Chiuli is also the author of "Setting the Pace to Run Your Counties": An Organization
Development Handbook for Counties in Kenya (2014J. His second book is on Essential of
Leadership in Public Service which is to be released soon and has participated in a number
of public service reform programmes, at then Directorate of Public Service Management,
in the Executive office of the President.

Joyce is in charge of Adult literacy and Low Cost

Boarding Schools across the 24 ASAL Counties of Kenya

Achola is currently the Coordinator for the School

Meals Program. Previously, she worked as a teacher
for 16 years from 1997 to 2016. From 2016 to 2022,
she served as Education Officer at the Ministry of
Education headquarters. Achola holds Master ofArts
Linguistics and Bachelor of Education Arts.
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Mr. Kirimi is the Deputy Director Supply Chain Management.

He joined the Council in April 2019. He is responsible for all

procurement process.

He holds a Graduate Professional Diploma in Procurement &

Supply, BA. Econs and currently pursuing a Master of Science

in Procurement & Logistics (Kenyatta University]. He is a

licensed member with the Kenya lnstitute of Supplies Management (KISM] and the

Chartered Institute of Procurement & Supply (CIPSJ

CPA Dagane Holds M.B.A (Finance) From Kenyatta University

and B.Com. (AccountingJ From Egerton University. He is CPA

(K), CS (K) and Member of TCPAK in good standing.

He is the Head of Finance & Accounts Unit at the National

Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK].

xv
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As the National Council for Nomadic Education in
Kenya concludes another year of service to the nation,
Iam pleased to present the Annual report whtch
documents the accomplishments and the challenges
we faced during the Financial Year 2022/2023.

As you may be aware, the National Council for
Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK) is a product
of affirmative action established through various legal
instruments. Since its founding, the Council has been
establishing strong relationship with government
agencies, regional and international organizations to
enhance the continued provision of inclusive and

equitable quality education and lifelong learning opportunities for alt. This is in line with
sustainable Development Goal No. 4 and the Agenda 2030 pledge by uN member states of
'Leaving No-one Behind'.

Excellence in Policy-led practice

The provision of education to Kenyan learners is structured through policies, institutions
and programs that logically guide or influence their possible participation and contribution
in the national and international socio-economic activities. The education system ought to
produce an individual capable of lifelong learning and able to take the initiative to solve
problems independently. This would make the person internationally competitive and
economically viable. Following the continued exclusion of vulnerable children from
education, the year under review saw the council has conducted a situation analysis of
mobile and feeder schools with intention of providing existing ones with basic requirements
including innovative mobile education kits. Additionally, the council conducted a

mapping/assessment exercise on Duksi and Madrassa institutions in 10 predominantly
Muslim Counties. Further, the Council held various Stakeholder engagement
forums/confere nces on avenues to inform policy direction in the overall integration of Duksi
and Madrassa into formal education in Kenya.

Organization Structure and Development

The year under review saw the Council employ fifty two (52J new staff and receive
additional twelve (12J staff from the Ministry of Education Headquarters' SMp unit that was
under the Directorate of Basic Education. The employment of new staff involved low to
middle level cadres as part of the long term strategy to establish the Council's substantive
staffing compliment to meet its human resource management demands.

Having posted 3.5 pts in the first cycle of evaluation of the Performance contracting, the
council continues implementing results-based activities drawn from the strategic plan,

xvl



National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended 3o June 2o23

Annual Work Plan, Individual Work Plan as well as deliver on the Performance Contracts

(PCsJ.

Financial Performance

The Council is committed to the fiscal responsibiliry principles outlined in the constitution

and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012. The government's reformation decision on

education delivery targeting the vulnerable have enabled NACoNEK to provide timely and

adequate school meals through In-kind model across eleven (11] counties and Cash Transfer

to target schools in fourteen (14J counties, have had a significant financial implication.

The year under review saw the Council receive its usual funding from the Exchequer coupled

with streams of funding from development partners. ln FY 2022/2023, NACONEK received

funds from the Exchequer amounting to Kshs 6,22I,940,262 as recurrent expenditure as

well as activity-based funding from UNICEF amounting to Kshs. 17,21.2,160. An analysis of

the Council's asset base reveals a progression from previous years and currently stands at

Kshs 6,251,377,802 with projected increase inFY 2023 /2024. The increase is attributed to

the transfer of the School Feeding Grant supported by GoK, World Bank under KPEEL project

and the Sports Fund as well as the ongoing development ofthe strategic initiatives including

IMPRESED project to be financed by AfDB. The council does not have A-in-A and thus does

not record profit.

Programme Performance and Proiects Profile

Noring that the FY 2022/2023 was characterized with political climate in the country with

elections in August 2o?2, the year had its own its challenges. However, this did not impede

the performance of the management team which continued to successfully implement its

mandate and to advance its goals and objectives set in the Annual Work Plan.

During the year under review, NACONEK continued implementing in partnership

"Expansion Come to School Kenya Programme"; a three year (2020-2023) project that is

coming to an end fDecember 2023). Through the action of this project, the council has

enhanced enrolment drives as well as integrated NACoNEK-UNICEF Digital Attendance

Application platform into NEMIS to enhance enrolment & retention. To date, from the target

250,000 00sc, the efforts of the council have enrolled 228,000 00SC into various schools

across the target sixteen (16J Counties in Kenya.

The council continued with piloting innovations on its pilot framework of Water, food and

enerry solutions for sustainable schools (NIWFESS) in Kuno which has been a springboard

for exhibiting greening and climate proofing solutions across schools in the ASALs of Kenya.

Continuing to chair the Human Capital under the National Drought Management Authority,

the council continued supporting the refugee education and related education in

emergencies in Dadaab Refugee Camp.

In bid to raise its project performance portfolio as well as support some key Vision 2030

Flagship Projects as sripulated in the PC ofthe FY 202212023, the council has developed two

XVII
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proiects IMPRESED and INCARE awaiting signing off wirh AfDB and rhe World Bank's
Climate Investment Funds (CIFJ respectively.

Future Outlook

The Council is dedicated and committed to achieving on its redefined vision "a well-
educated population in the ASAL areas, pockets of poverty regions and urban informal
settlements proactively engaged in the transformation of Kenya." and our mission "to
coordinate and strengthen the management, administration and delivery of qualiry basic
education to populations in the nomadic regions, pockets of poverty areas and urban
informal settlements of Kenya."

The Council is cognizant ofthe challenges faced by populations in these areas which revolve
largely around impacts of climate change. Impacts of climate change prompt emergency
nomadism which is an economic activity and therefore mobile in nature and distance to
education institutions makes the provision of formal education difficult. These challenges
are characterised by persistent insecurity in some of the nomadic regions, pockets of
Poverty areas and Urban Informal Settlements of Kenya, higher teacher turn over due to
insecurity ad hardship, limited monitoring and supervision of learning institutions as well
as wildlife-human confl ict.

The Council serves the most marginalized and hardest to reach in the society. These
populations have been hit hardest by drought, floods, destruction of properties which has
resulted in the loss of lives and livelihoods. This has a negative impact on education as

communities flee and migrate to safer places which results to high number of out of school
children. NAC0NEK therefore is championing for programs that will ensure communities are
resilient and adaptive to the shocks of climate change with the school as the centre of
interventions targeting learners and their families. These programs go a long way in
ensuring children are retained in schools and continuity of learning is achieved.

0n the provision ofschool meals program front, the council is actively engaging in resource
mobilization efforts. The Council has successfully rallied development partners including the
Rockefeller Foundation, World Food Program and Education Above All ofQatar to champion
for climate smart initiatives for the program.

Acknowledgement and Appreciation

I would like to express my special thanks to the vibrant new staff as well as the deployed
staff from MoE to support the operations of the School Meals Programme now anchored at
NACONEK. The Council appreciates contractors, suppliers and service providers for their
dedication and commitment in enhancing timely delivery of services to enable the council
achieve on its mandate.

I greatly appreciate the continued support of our stakeholders who believe in our systems,
people, and leadership capabilities as well as appropriate resourcing ofour activities in the
changing environment. Going forward, it is my hope that the Council, like the phoenix bird
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that rises from the ashes to fly again, will reslliently overcome the many challenges

encountered and successfully deliver on its mandate to meet the expectations of all

stakeholders.

f, Hsc
Secretary/Chief Executlve Officer
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In line to the Section 81 Subsection 2[f] of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012,
NACONEK has six strategic pillars towards achieving on its overall goal of improved
education access, retention, relevance, quality and equity among nomadic communities in
Kenya. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar I: Sustainable, Equitable and Quality Education

Pillar II: Stakeholder Engagement

Pillar lll: lnnovative Approaches and Interventions

Pillar lV: Organizational Efficiency and Effectiveness

Pillar V: Practice-led Policy Development

Pillar VI: Organization Capacity & Capability

The Council develops its annual work plans based on the above 6 pillars and the stated
objectives below within its Strategic Plan (2016 /2077 - 2020 /2021):

. Strategic Obiective 1: To create and strengthen effective mechanisms for
coordination, knowledge management and partnerships with various stakeholders
to develop education in nomadic counties.

Strategic Obiective 2: To enhance advocacy, social mobilization and stakeholders'
engagement for the development of education in nomadic counties.

Strategic Obiective 3: To coordinate development, expansion and monitoring of
innovations in the delivery of quality education in nomadic counties.

Strategic Objective 4: To strengthen institutional governance and management of
education in nomadic counties.

Strategic Obiective 5: To review and promote the development, adaptation and

implementation of policies and a curriculum that is relevant and appropriate to the

nomadic way of life and livelihood.

Strategic Obiective 6: To strengthen institutional capacity and operations of
NACONEK.

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1,6

a

a

The council achieved its performance targets set for the FY 20ZZ/2023 period for its six [6)
Pillars and strategic objectives, as indicated in the table below:
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Summary of Performance Information

Pillar 1 i Sustainable, Equitable and Quality Education

SO1: Creation and
strengthening of

I effective mechanisms
for coordination,
knowledge

I management and
partnerships with

i various stakeholders to
develop education in
nomadic counties.

Enrolment and attendance

reports on the Out-of-School

children in various schools across

the target sixteen (16) Counties in

Kenya.

Reports on Refugee/ Host

Community Schools as well as

assessments of short rains under

Education in Emergencies.

Report on Mapping of APBET

Schools in Kisumu.

Report on mapping of Pilot

Schools on School Feeding

Programme IFortified PorridgeJ.

Reports on joint Monitoring of
School Meals Programme fln-
Kind, Cash Transfer & Centralized

Kitchen ModelsJ.

Enhanced enrolment drives as

well as integrated NACONEK-

U NICEF Digital Attendance

Application platform into NEMIS

to enhance enrolment & retention.

lointly with MoE and stakeholders I

of EiE conducted biannual short

rains assessments and conducted

termly assessment of the 22

Refugee and 7 Host Community
Schools in Dadaab.

Conduct mapping of APBET

schools in Kisumu.

Conducted Mapping of Pilot

Schools for the fortified Porridge

for schools in Bungoma, Nairobi
and Garissa Counties.

Conducted Termly Monitoring of
food supplies &Cash Transfers to

Strengthened the operations of
NACONEK in the following
areas;

- lncreasing enrolment of
228,000 OOSC in 16 Counties

in Kenyo.

- Coordinotion of SMP, In-

I{ind Model in 11 ASAI,

Counties

Coordination of SM P, Cash

Tronsfer Model in 14 ASAL

Counties.

To deliver on the existing and

expanded mandate, NACONEK

enhanced partnership base

with key development partners
including the following;

a

World Bonk - KPEEL Project 
'
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schools and conducted a scoping
mission for feasibility of
centralized kitchens in the urban
informal settlements.

Through Precooked packaged

Porridge enhanced school feeding
programmes through home-
grown solutions (Farmer Field

Schoolsl.

UNICEF-Expansion

school Programme
come to

a

Sports Fund - Schools Meals

Programme.

U nibroin Industries/Tetro
Pak Laval/lngredion-
Precooked packaged

Porridge for education

It ttt tl ir.s \i lt tr.r, r' rr.rrl.

SO2: Enhance
advocacy, social
mobilization and
stakeholders'
engagement for the
development of
education in nomadic
counties.

Comprehensive IEC materials
package developed.

Number of partners identified
and on board.

Development of IEC materials for
social mobilization & campaigns.

Identi$r and partner with local
organizations

Attended/Participated and
exhibited in KESSHA, KEPSHA,

While implementing activities
under this strategic obiective,
NACONEK has improved
stakeholder participation,
developed Iocal leadership,

and improve resource
mobilization. This is evident in the
following areas;

NACONEK has been able to
effe ctiv e ly e ng a g e / se n s i ti z e

a

a

a

a

S Ir'ir t(Br(: Oblt.rttve Kt:t l'erlirl rnant:r. l lrdrctrlors

I



a

a

Back to office Reports for
participating in Exhibitions and

Conferences

Reports on Stakeholders'

advocacy/education forums.

Media engagement continued

online with active website-

Report on Workshops/Forums

held to engage with Urban

Education Stakeholders.

Draft Report on Joint Education

Sector Review

Report on Training ofSCDE on

School Meals Programme

Report on online and Physical

Meetings held with CDE

a

Il
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KEPSA Conferences and other
International forums.

Continued conducting online

organised stakeholders'

advocacy/education forums at

county level IMandera, Kwale,

Kilifi and NairobiJ.

a

a

Conducted media engagement.

Held 4 Workshops/Forums with
Urban Education Stakeholders.

jointly with MoE Departments

and Agencies alongside other
development partners conducted

the Joint Education Sector Review

of the NESSP.

Conducted tlvo maior trainings on

school food handling.

ia

public on the value for
education for the marginalized

communities.

Through community

engagement, N AC0N EK has

inspired the notion of shoring of
resources and funding; more

effe ctive problem - solvi ng ; better
representation of voices within

the community; and

accountobility



Held quarterly and one annual
meeting with CDE on field
activities.

a

Strategic Obiective Key Performance lndicatom Activities Achievelnents

SO3: Coordination of
development,
expansion and
monitoring of
innovations in the
delivery of quality
education in nomadic
counties.

A fully functional solar
containerized ICT Classroom in
Kuno Primary School in Garissa.

Report on mapping and

assessment of mobile and feeder
schools in five ASAL counties
(Turkana, Samburu, Isiolo, Wajir
and Garissa).

Montlly Progress Reports on

NIWFESS Pilot framework at
Kuno Primary School.

a

a

a

Conducted distance learning
through establishment of a solar
containerized ICT Classroom in
Kuno Primary School in Garissa.

In Partnership with UNICEF

conducted a situation analysis of
mobile and feeder schools with
intention of providing existing
ones with basic requirements
including innovative mobile
education kits.

Continued with piloting
innovations on Water, food and
energr solutions for sustainable
schools in Kuno.

In partnership with DRC and
ActionAid Kenya held
Workshops/trainings on

ra

a

a

a
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NACONEK has adequate
established successful innovations
for at risk children in the ASALs

through;

a

a

Improving the educational
outcomes for at risk children
Increasing schools response to
the needs ofat risk students.

Encouraging schools to
continue to come up with new
ideas and programmes to
support at risk children,
Use of Pilot schools as a source
of establishing Innovations
funding pool which can help
schools to trial innovative
programmes for students at
risk of poor educational
outcomes. The pool provides

a



I
t

Accelerated Education

Programme.

Increased Participation and

monitoring of schools in
continued.

Sensitized 500 head teachers on

Enerry Saving fikos and climate

change initiatives at school level

in four Counties of Garissa, Tana

River, Kwale and Kilifi.

Piloted use of Steam Cooking

system in schools in Kenya wit}
Nairobi, Kwale and Kilifi as target

Counties.

a

a

a

Reports and Guidelines on

Accelerating Leaning Programme.

Monitoring Reports generated

during county Education Days

and School visits.

Reports on Green Enerry
initiadves for schools

a

a

AchievementsActivltiesKey Performance lndicatorsStrategic Obiective

NACONEK has signifi cantly

enhanced the coordination of
education activities within its
geographical spread as well as

increased prudence in the overall

management and governance of
schools.

Carried out ICT functionality and

integration into NEMIS for learner
enrolment and attendance

processes.

Procured and installed the ERP to
ensure integrated management of
NAC0NEK Offi ce processes.

a

Deployment of Digital Attendance

Application (DAA) and

Integration into NEMIS.

Functional In-house Enterprise

resource planning (ERPJ capacity.

a

a

Strengthen
institutional
governance and
management of

SO 4:

Nethnal cqmcfl for Nomadlc E&rcatlon ln Kcnya (NAtCot{EK)

Annual Rcports and Flnanclal St tcrncnts For the year endcd ,o func 2013

schools with money to get the
programmes under wan with
schools or their communities

also contributing funding and

other resources. The goal is for
the programmes, if they prove

to be effective, to become self-

funding.



education in nomadic
counties.

a

a

Adequate staffi ng space,

equipment, furniture and services

for NACONEK operations.

Draft 2022-2027 Strategic Plan

PC reports

Report on training of BOMs & PAs

of hosting communities and

Refugee Schools on parental
engagement, values of education,

community initiatives and lifelong
learning.

Training of Teachers on Mental

Health and Psychosocial Support
(MHPSSI to cascade the same to
learners and parents.

Annual pro)ect review of the

target 16 Counties on the OOSC

programme.

National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK)
Annual Reports and Finan€ial Statements For the year ended Jo June 2023

a Recruited 42 new staff, secured

one additional floor for Office

Space and furniture, secured the
WFP vehicles procured for MoE to
support SMP and established

Records Management System at
the units' level.

Timely carried out strategic plan

evaluation and review.

Prepared and monitored Annual
corporate work plans as well as

implementation of performance

contracts.

Conducted three cycles of training
of BOMs & PAs of hosting
communities and Refugee

Schools.

Held three cycles of Training of
Teachers on Mental Health and
Psychosocial Support (MHPSSI.

a

a

_t



Conducted an Annual project

review ofthe target 16 Counties

on the OOSC programme

o

GN.7.
Key Pcrformance lndicatoni ActivitiesStrategic Obiective i('haevements

Held Workshops to complete the

review of Kenya Nomadic

Education Policy. Shared with
MoE Senior Management for
concurrence and approval.

Conducted a mapping/assessment

exercise on Duksi and Madrassa

institutions in 10 predominantly
Muslim Counties.

Held various Stakeholder

engagement forums/conferences

on avenues for integration of
Duksi and Madrassa into formal
education in Kenya.

Conducted workshops/forums on

the perspectives for Accelerated

Education Programme with for a
policy direction.

a

o

o

a

Review and promote
the development,
adaptation and
implementation of
policies and a
curriculum that is
relevant and
appropriate to the
nomadic way of life and
livelihood,

SO 5: Draft Reviewed Policy of the

Nomadic Education in Kenya

Rapid Assessment Report for
Duksi & Madrassa institutions.

Reports on Guidelines on the

Integration of Duksi and

Madrassa into formal education

system in Kenya.

Report on Accelerated Learning

Policy Framework

a

o

a

o

Nrtlonrl Corlncll for t{onradlc Educatlon ln Kcnya (I{ACoNEK)
Annual Rcports and Flnan<ial Staterncnts For the year cndcd ,o rum 2o1,

The emerging dynamics in
education globally and in the

country has pushed the Council to
successfully review and develop
policies and guidelines towards
realizing provision of inclusive,
equitable and sustainable

education for all.
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a Reports on Review Processes of
the APBET policy.

Held preliminary meetings and
workshops on review of the
APBET policy.

Conducted joint
workshops/forums with KNQA to
anchor RPL refugee teachers and
Duksi and Madrassa Instructors
on their professional career path.

Reports on Review Processes of
Recognition of Prior Learning

(RPLI to benefit the refugee

teachers and Duksi and Madrassa

lnstructors.

Pillar 6 Organization Capacity & Capability

.r(' I llrtr', t, \ r hr'r t'. r lr,,ttr.rrti, llrrl,, rl|, T
so 6:

Strengthen
institutional capacity
and operations of
NACONEK.

Operational organization
structure and scheme of service

New Staff hired and inducted as

well received the SMP Unit staff
from MoE on deployment.

lncreased and stable revenue
streams

I-p lemented organization

ms from I

Overall, NACONEK has

exhibited the capacity to adapt
to evolving conditions, react to
changes in their operating
environments and respond to
new opportunities. In so doing
it has enhanced its overall
performance management and
visibility.

structure and scheme of service.

Conducting the hiring of 42 new
staff, received SMP staff from MoE

and held capacity build
workshops for inducting new
staff.

Enhanced existing sources of
revenue from GoK and increased
alternative revenue strea

vIl
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funding agencies & Development
partners.

Formulated and implemented cost

management strategies through
instituting zero/activity based

budgeting.Effective cost management and

realistic Budget

Appropriate physical and IT
infrastructure in place.

High retention of motivated

NACONEK workforce including
the contracted
experts/professionals.

Procured appropriate physical

and lT infrastructure for effective

utilisation.

Continued use of
Expert/Professional contracted

staff as financing staff training
and development locally and

internationally.

a

a

a
a

a
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ti r .t' r-1.,r Iate (iovelnance Statenlent

5.l lntroduction

Corporate governance is the exercise of ethical and effective leadership by the governing
body towards the achievement of governance outcomes, ethical culture, good performance,
effective control and legitimacy. The responsibility of governing the Council lies with the
Council Members. NACONEK has put in place systems to ensure that high standards of
corporate governance are maintained at all levels in the Council.

6.2 Statement of Compliance

The Council as a responsible corporate citizen is alive to the tenets of good governance and

accountable to the Government of Kenya, through the Ministry of Education. Thus, in so

doing, the Council complies with all applicable laws and statutes and maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance as guided by the following documents: -

1) Code ofGovernance for State Corporations (Mwongozo)

2J Constitution of Kenya, 2010

3) Leadership and integrity Act No.19 of 2012

4) Board Charter
5) Public Officers and Ethics Act No, 4 of 2003

The conduct of individual council members when dealing with the Council operations is

governed by the Council's Code of Conduct and Ethics.

Board Charter

The Council has in place a Council Charter which was reviewed in 2018. It provides the

Council members with an opportunity to think creatively and critically about how their
strategic direction and operational plans align with the Council's expectations, with respect
to governance.

The Council Charter governs;

o Conduct and management of meetings,

. Facilitation of Council members,
o Succession planning,

r Process ofAppointment and removal ofCouncil members,
. Roles & functions ofthe Council,

. lnduction & training,
o Conflict of [nterest,

r Council remuneration and

o Ethics & conduct.

X
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The Charter is complimentary and does not intend to change or interpret any statute law or

regulation. It is available to all Council members.

Board Size, Composition and Appointments

The Basic Education Act (2013J, the Sixth Schedule provides for a maximum ofthirteen (13)

Council members, eight (10J of whom are non- executive and three [3J executive members.

The Chairperson shall serve for a period of four (4) years renewable once. All the ten (10J

non-executives hold office for a period not exceeding three (3) years and are eligible for

reappointment for one term not exceeding three (3) years.

A Council member may be appointed for a cumulative term not exceeding six (5) years.

During the constitution of the Council, the appotnting authority ensures that Council

composition complies with the applicable legislation as outlined in the Constitution of Kenya

and the Basic Education Act (2013). Additionally, at least one member has to be a financial

management or accounting expert. Council members' appointments are by name and notice

in the Kenya Gazette. The Council Chairperson is appointed by the Cabinet Secretary;

Ministry of Education while Council members are nominated by the respective organizations

and their names are forwarded to the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Education for

appointment.

As at 3Oth lune 2023, the council has had no substantive Council members in place.

Changes in the Council in the Year

Following the end of the term of service of all in dependent council members, the Council

has no substantive Council in place.

Council Meetings

Following the end ofthe term ofservice of all in dependent council members, the Council did

not hold any meeting during the period under review.

Council's Remuneration

The Council members are remunerated for their services in accordance with guidance from

the State Corporation Advisory Committee [SCAC) through circulars issued from time to
time. The regular allowances for Council Chairpersons and Council Members are as follows:

xt
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Allowance Chairperson

1 Honoraria

2

3

Sitting

Airtime (Landline) Kes.2,000 per month

Accommodation Kes.10,500/- per day

4 Airtime (MobiteJ Kes.5,000 per month

Council Member

Kes. 80,000/- per month N/A

Kes. 20,000/- per sitting Kes.20,000/- per

Kes.10,500/- per

N/A

ngtti

day

5 N/A

6 Kes.2,000 per day

Determined by prevailing

Government guidelines;

currently National Treasury
Circular of 2015. Paid at the

current prevailing Automobile
Association of Kenya IAAKJ
rates.

Procured competitively

Kes.2,000 per day

N/A8

9 MedicaI Expenses

Personal Accident Cover

("Not Life")

Lunch

Transport7

Inpatient Kes. 2 million per

annum; Outpatient Kes.

100,000/- per annum and Last

expense (selfl Kes.100,000/-

N/A

Declaration of Conflict of lnterest

Council members are required to avoid conflict of interest in any matter that relates to the
company. Council members are expected to declare any real or perceived conflict ofinterest
with the organization upon appointment to the Council. A Council member who
subsequently identifies an area of conflict shall be required to disclose any actual or
potential conflict ofinterest to the Council, and provide all relevant information and abstain
from decision making where conflict exists.

Declaration of conflict of interest is a standard agenda item which is addressed at the onset
of each Council and Committee meeting. NACONEK Council members declare conflict of

xll
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interest at the beginning of each and every Council and Committee meetings and

immediately thereafter sign in the register ofconflict ofinterest. The Council has put in place

a conflict-of-interest policy. No conflicts of interest were declared or reported by Council

Members in the year under review.

Succession Plan

Since the term ofservice of most ofthe Council members came to an end as at 306fune 2021,

the CEO in liaison with the Ministry of Education, wrote letters to the different organizations

requesting them to nominate their representatives to the Council. The names nominated

where forwarded to the CS, Ministry of Education for consideration and appointment

xIt
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7, Management Dlscussion and Analysis
Section A

The performance of NACONEK of the financial year under review in general is reviewed
below:

7.1 Fiscal Performance

NAC0NEK aimed at raising 1000/o ofthe budget revenue and containing expenditure within
the approved ceiling. Government allocation was received in full and absorbed in funding
Council operations, Below is the budget vs actual figures for FY 2022-2023

I-

a
!

I



(

1

I

.l

I

National Councll for Nomadie Education in Kenya (NACONEK)

Annual Reports and Flnancial Statemcnts For the y.ar end.d ,o June 2o2,

7.1 Revenue Performance

NACONEK is supported by the National Government through the Ministry of Education by
way oftransfer of funds for operational use and School Meals Programme grants.

Below is the trend analysis of Revenue performance for 5 years

Revenue

7,000,000,0@

5,000,000,000
6,25t ,w2

5,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

3,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

136,

201r/19 ,0t9l20 2or0l2t 2l,,2tl72 2022lzt

7.1 Expenditure Performance

Below is the 5 years Expenditure trend analysis.

Expenditure

7,000,000,000

6,000,000,000

5,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

3,m0,000,000

2,0@,000,000

1,000,000,000

6,039,263,071

135,710,903 185,758,771 228,345,L28
425,
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7.2 Operational Performance

a) Human Resource Management

The year under review saw the Council employ fifty two (52] new staff and received
additional twelve ( 12) staff from the Ministry of Education Headquarters' SMP unit that was
under the Directorate of Basic Education. The employment of new staff involved low to
middle level cadres as part of the long term strategy to establish the Council's substantive
staffing compliment to meet its human resource management demands.

b) Capacity Building of NACONEK Staff

The new staff of NACONEK including those deployed from MoE were taken through wvo

cycles of training as part oftheir induction. The objective ofthe two trainings 1'l,.s tn 3nsur3
ihe n:'r'l employees become better at their jobs and overcome performance gaps that are
based on lack of knowledge or skills.

Six of NACONEK staff; a mix ofthe new and existing were financed to attend either local or
international training to horn their skills. Additionally, the School Meals Programme Unit
and the Procurement Unit attended trainings to enhance their knowledge on managing the
Schools Meals Programme.

The NAC0NEK ICT team in collaboration with Microsoft ADC conducted the coding and cyber
security sensitization for 15 NACONEK officers. The sensitization covered email security,
password securify, malware, privacy, data security and encryption, mobile device security,
multi-factor authentication, physical security, ICT Regulations and response to attacks.

c) NACONEK Staff Performance

Having a mix of staff; newly employed, those on deployment and expert/consultants on
board, the Council needed to measure and monitor progress towards achieving
organizational goals while also identifying areas that need improvement. It is in this regard
that the newly employed staff were subjected to appraisals while those on

secondment/deployment signed respective performance contracts with their respective
hierarchal authorities.

(i) ProgrammePerformance

To achieve on its mandate, the Council's adopted the following strategies during the financial
year 2021/ZZ to realize its programming goals and objectives; key among them include:

. Coordination, knowledge managementand partnerships;

c Advocacy, social mobilization and stakeholder engagement;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of innovations;

. Strengthening institutional governonce and management of education

o Strengthening institutional capacity and operations.

xvt



o

National Council for Nomadic Edu(ation in Kenya (NACONEK)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended 3o June 2023

Review and promotion of development, adaptation and implementation of policies and

curriculum

(ii) Coordination, Knowledge Managementand partnerships

During the year under review, NACONEK continued implementing in partnership

"Expansion Come to School Kenya Programme". This has been a three year project that is

coming to an end (December 2023). Through the action of this proiect, the Council has

enhanced enrolment drives as well as integrated NACONEK-UNICEF Digital Attendance

Application platform into NEMIS to enhance enrolment & retention. To date, from the target

250,000 OOSC, the efforts of the Council have enrolled 228,000 0OSC into various schools

across the target sixteen (16J Counties in Kenya.

The council continues to chair the education pillar under Ending Drought Emergencles

(EDEJ in Kenya. In this regard, the Council jointly with MoE and stakeholders of EiE

conducted biannual short rains assessments and conducted termly assessment of the 22

Refugee and 7 Host Community Schools in Dadaab.

The provision ofbasic education in urban informal settlements in Kenya has invariably been

described as poorly organized, less equitable and hence, one that is in crisis. [t is indicated

that about 47 percent of children from poor households in urban slums utilize private

schooling; this increases to over 60 percent in cities and municipalities. It is in this regard

that the Council collaborated with various CSOs in the education sector to conduct a mapping

exercise ofthe APBET schools in Kisumu city.

School Meals Programme is critical to student health and well-being, especially for low-

income students-and ensures that students have nutrition they need throughout the day

to learn. Towards enhancing investments in healthy school meals which build a foundation

that improves a child's ability to learn, the Council conducted Mapping of Pilot Schools for

the fortified Porridge for schools in Bungoma, Nairobi and Garissa Counties. Conducted

Termly Monitoring of food supplies &Cash Transfers to schools and conducted a scoping

mission for feasibiliry of centralized kitchens in the urban informal seftlements. Through

Precooked packaged Porridge enhanced school feeding programmes through home-grown

solutions (Farmer Field Schoolsl.

To build partnerships at a competitive level, the council worked closely with various

partners including UNICEF, AVSI Foundation, MSEA, Ministry ofAgriculture, and Ministry of
Water- Mlcro Irrigation for Schools unit, National Youth Service and Ministry of Interior and

National Coordination. This working was to strengthen capacity assessment of the Council

to secure the IMPRESSED project, that is a pipeline to be financed by AfDB and Qatar's

Education Above All (EAAJ,

The Council continued working in partnership with the county governments of Garissa,

Mandera and Wa.jir as well as Muslim Academic Institutions to undertake various steps

towards integrating Dugsi and Madrassa into mainstream basic education system. The
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contributions from the county governments have increased learning outcomes and ensured
that more children access education. The council-maintained partnership with National
Drought Management Authoriry (NDMAI in supporting the replication of the success of the
NIWFESS pilot framework in Kuno Primary School to other areas in the ASALs of Kenya.

(iii) Advocacy, Social Mobilization and Stakeholder Engagement

With the rise in deepening and expanding public engagement globalty, the importance of
community engagement'has become pivotal for well-functioning, fwenty-first century
democracies. Constructive relationships between communities and the institutions of
government make community engagement not only desirable, but necessary and viable as it
is likely to lead to more equitable, sustainable public decisions and improve the liveability
of local communities. This is why communiry engagement is important for individuals,
public organizations, and governments alike.

There are evidently good practices in the Council's advocacy, social mobilization and
stakeholder engagement strategies. During the year under review, NACONEK through the
various forums with stakeholders and community engagement increased its visibility and
understanding of issues and empowered communities to have their say over decisions that
affect expansion of access and equitable provision of basic education, particularly for the
learners in the nomadic and pockets of poverty regions of Kenya.

The Council continued with development of IEC materials for social mobilization &
campaigns as well as identification of local CSOs and establishment of partnerships.
Additionally, to raise its visibility within the education sector, the Council staff
attended/participated and exhibited in KESSHA, KEPSHA, KEPSA Conferences and other
International forums. Through feedback, these engagements enabled the council to listen

and, in turn, demonstrate the impact of public contribution to its mandate thus, building
deeper, stronger and more trusting relationships between the Council, public organizations
and communities.

(iv) Held quarterly and one annual meeting with CDE on field activities.

The year under review saw the Council partnerships continue to yield positive outcomes and

developments in the advocacy, social mobilization and stakeholder engagement towards
equitable and qualitative delivery of educational opportunities to nomadic populations in
Kenya.

The Council continued to undertake programs that ensure it remains efficient and

competitive in the carrying out of its activities. The Council continued conducting online
organised stakeholders' advocacy/education forums at county level (Mandera, Kwale, Kilifi
and NairobiJ. Additionally, the Council remained active with mainstream and online media

engagement. To enhance community engagement, the Council held 4 Workshops/Forums
with Urban Education Stakeholders. To enhance the Council's visibility as a SAGA within the

MoE, Key staff participated in the foint Education Sector Review ofthe NESSP. Overall, these

efforts saw school infrastructure and lea rning-.outcomes improved thus an increase in the
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number of Low-Cost Boarding schools, Teacher numbers, overall Pupil enrolment, Nomadic

girl-child enrolment and Pupil attendance, progression, graduation and transition rates.

(v) Development, implementation and monitoring of innovations

Innovation in government is about finding new ways to impact the lives of citizens, and new

approaches to activating them as partners to shape the future together. [t involves

overcoming old structures and modes of thinking and embracing new technologies and

ideas. The potential of innovation in government is immense; however, the challenges

governments face are significant. Despite this, governments are transforming the way they

work to ensure this potential is met.

ln the year under review, while implementing the programmes under the Council's mandate,

ICT officers were supported to conduct distance learning through establishment of a solar

containerized ICT Classroom in Kuno Primary School in Garissa. In Partnership with UN ICEF,

the council conducted a situation analysis of mobile and feeder schools with intention of
providing existing ones with basic requirements including innovative mobile education kits.

To enhance data management, reporting, evaluation and community engagement, the

Council continued with piloting innovations on Water, food and energy solutions for

sustainable schools in Kuno. Additionally, in partnership with DRC and ActionAid Kenya,

the Council held Workshops/trainings on Accelerated Education Programme.

To strengthen innovations across the ASAL schools, the CounciI sensitized 500 head teachers

on Energy Saving Jikos and climate change initiatives at school level in four Counties of
Garissa, Tana River, Kwale and Kilifi. Following sensitization of the 500 head teachers on

energy saving jikos and climate smart initiatives, the council piloted use of Steam Cooking

system in schools in Kenya with Nairobi, Kwale and Kilifi as target Counties.

The Council will continue investing in innovations and establish a Monitoring, Evaluation,

Accountability and Learning (MEA&L) framework to ensure delivery of sustainable,

equitable and quality education in the nomadic counties

(vi] Strengthening institutional governance and management of education

Cood governance can serve as an entry point to raising institutional performance in the

delivery ofeducation services. Strengthening good governance in education systems

promotes effective delivery of education services. Critical are appropriate standards,

incentives, information, and accountability, which induce high performance from public

providers. lmproved public performance is one means to enhance returns to public

education investments. To strengthen the overall delivery of education in the ASALS of

Kenya, the Council carried out ICT functionality and integration into NEMIS for learner

enrolment and attendance processes. This enhanced the enrolment ofthe 228,000 children

were considered otherwise OOSC back into school across the sixteen (16) target counties

considered to have the highest number ofout-of-school children in Kenya. In this regard, the
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Council conducted an Annual project review of the larget 16 Counties on the 00SC
programme that's is due to come to an end (December 2023).

The council managed to procure and install the ERP to ensure integrated management of
NACONEK Office processes. Additionally, the Council recruited 52 new stafi secured one
additional floor for Office Space and furniture, secured the WFP vehicles procured for MoE

to support SMP and established Records Management System at the units'level.

The political economy context of education plays an important role in determining whether
the ideas and analysis of the Council have a chance of implementation. It is in this regard that
the Council conducted a timely strategic plan evaluation and review which paved way for
preparation and monitoring of Annual corporate work plans as well as implementation of
performance contracts.

While conducted the three cycles of training of BOMs & PAs of hosting communities and
Refugee Schools, the Council was ensuring quality protective education for refugee children
and young people everywhere. Working with UNHCR partners and other international
agencies, the Council was able to conduct three cycles of Training of Teachers on Mental
Health and Psychosocial Support (MHPSS). ln conducting the trainings for stakeholders in
refugee education, the Council was reiterating the government's commitment to facilitate
access to inclusive and equitable quality education in national systems which creates

conditions in which children and youth can learn, thrive and develop their potential; build
individual and collective resilience; experience and negotiate peaceful coexistence; and
contribute to their societies. This reaffirms the fact that inclusion is the best option for
refugees, displaced and stateless children and youth and their hosting communities.

(vii) Strengthening institutional capacity and operations.

Good governance and effective public management are essential for the country and the
education sector development which can accelerate development and inclusive growth. But

Government Departments and Agencies are confronted with the challenges of designing

sound policies amid the changing climate and economic and population landscapes. To

adapt, the Council strengthen its institutional capacity by employing 52 new staff and

receiving 12 deployed staff from the mother Ministry to help coordinate the SMP programme

that is part of the additional mandate of the Council. This development facilitated the

Council to begin the implementation of its organization structure and scheme ofservice.

To increase its institutional capacities to organize programmes, projects and operations, the

Council enhanced existing sources of revenue from GoK and increased alternative revenue

streams from funding agencies & Development partners. In bid to strengthen its operations,

the Council formulated and implemented cost management strategies through instituting
zero/activity based budgeting.

To meet the needs ofthe expanded staffing levels, the Council procured appropriate physical

and IT infrastructure. To close on any possible gaps, the Council continued to use the

experts/p rofessio nals contracted to support key areas of the organization. Additionally the
xx
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various capacity building and trainings conducted locally or internationally were geared

towards strengthening the governance and institutional capacities of the council by tackling

public management reforms and financial sustainability; and service delivery, capacity, and

standards.

(vii) Review and promotion of development, adaptation and implementation of
policies and curriculum.

ln the education sector, the importance of having implementing guidelines, together with

a policy, cannot be overemphasized. Generally, National governments themselves have

responsibility for implementing strategies and policies to improve education delivery. In

the year under review, the Council held workshops to complete the review of Kenya

Nomadic Education Policy. Shared with MoE Senior Management for concurrence and

approval.

The Council conducted a mapping/assessment exercise on Duksi and Madrassa institutions
in 10 predominantly Muslim Counties. Additionally, the Council held various Stakeholder

engagement forums/con ferences on avenues for integration of Duksi and Madrassa into

formal education in Kenya. All these activities were geared towards reducing the educational

disparities experienced in the predominantly Muslim Counties in Kenya since most ofthose
children considered to be out of school are attending either Duksi or Madrassa Institutions
in these areas. Towards seeking avenues for integration of Duksi and Madrassa into formal

education, the Council has been holding joint workshops/forums with KNQA to anchor RPL

for refugee teachers and Duksi and Madrassa Instructors on their professional career path.

To meet the educational needs of the vulnerable and most at risk children, the Council

conducted workshops/forums on the perspectives for Accelerated Education Programme

with for a policy direction on those children enrolling as overage learners and at risk of
dropping out. Additional, the council in partnership with partners in urban education held

preliminary meetings and workshops on possibility of review of the APBET policy.

7.3 Key Proiects Implemented

During the Fy Z02Z/2023, the council implemented the close up of the three year (2021-

2023J project "Come-to-school Kenya Programme" supported by UNICEF under the

Education-Above-All, Qatar Foundation. The Programme was destined to bring back to

school 250,000 out ofschool children across sixteen (151 counties that had high numbers of
00SC. Within the project there were various sub components including supporting

rehabilitation of facilities within low cost boarding schools, integration of Digital Attendance

Application with NEMIS, conducting OOSC Campaign drives, development of nomadic policy,

school re-entry, mentorship guidelines as well as integration of Duksi & Madrasa within
Formal Education system in Kenya. Additionally, the Council implemented School Meals

Programme under KPEEL financed by World Bank and Gok as well as supporting education

in Emergencies in Dadaab and Kakuma Refugee Camps.
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7.4 Compliance with Statutory Requirements

The Council has complied with the following statutory requirements,

(D Material Losses through Criminal Conduct, Irregular, Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

The Public Finance Management Act requires that the Council include in the Annual Report
particulars of any material losses through criminal conduct, irregular expenditure, fruitless
and wasteful expenditure that occurred during the financial year. There were no confirmed
material instances of losses through criminal conduct discovered during the year under
review.

(ii) StatutoryDeductionsCompliance

The Council has no statutory deductions arrears and has been prompt in remitting all
statutory deductions on time.

(iii) Supply Chain Management

The procurement function in the Council is guided by The Constitution of Kenya 2010, The
Public Procurement & Asset Disposal Act, 2015 & The Public Procurement and Disposal

Regulations 2020 and subsequent legal notices. Pursuant to Legal Notice No.1l-4, the Council
achieved 35olo in the allocation ofcontracts out of the total procurement plan budget of Kshs

5,794,054,195 to the designated categories of preference groups.

7.5 Risks Facing the Council
ln the year under review, the Council continued to dispense its functions without a

substantive Board/Council members thus presenting risks to decision making on staffing,
status of the council and various other operation obligations. At operational level, the
Council's Internal Audit Department was understaffed thus posing threats on the constant
review ofthe internal controls that are in place to ensure efficiency and accountability in the
management of resources. Additionally, the unexpected budget cuts by the National
Treasury presents risks to the council which may lead to inadequate funding of its
programmes and activities.

At the programming level, drawing conclusion from the fact that the Government of Kenya

has allocated significant budget to education, to implement reforms such as the Competency

Based Curriculum and 100 per cent transition from primary to secondary school. However,
issues such as poor-quality teaching and large class sizes still affect the quality of children's
learning. The pupil-to-teacher ratio remains very high in some counties, such as 77 to I in
Turkana which falls under the Council's geographical spread. Kenya has made gains in
reaching remote areas and disadvantaged communities at primary and pre-primary level. In

pastoral communities, high dropout rates reflect a perceived lack of value of schooling, long

distances to schools and high rates of child marriage. The Council covers the marginalized
areas of Kenya which include the ASALs of Kenya, Slums and Urban Informal settlements
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here education provision is faced with increased risks of insecurity, violence, child labour

and poor infrastructure, as exemplified in inadequate boarding facilities. The council is thus

faced with risks of poor Access and enrolment thus presenting the menace of Out of School

Children across the country.

7.6 Material arrears in statutory and other financial obligations
The Council has no statutory deductions arrears and has been prompt in remitting all
statutory deductions on time.

7.7 Review of the Economy

The Council received the mandate of school meals programme in the Second quarter of FY

2022/2023. At the time, food inflation in Kenya had increased to 15.4 percent in the third
quarter of 2022 from 12.8 percent in the previous quarter. The elevated food price was

largely driven by edible oils, maize, and wheat products. Overall inflation increased to 8.7

percent in the third quarter of 2022 from 7.2 percent in the previous quarter, driven by
suppty side factors that exerted upward pressure on food and energy prices. The energy

component remained the major driver of fuel inflation, due to higher costs of energy items

such as diesel, petrol, kerosene, gas/LPG, and electricity. Due to the pressure on economy,

the Council was confronted by a convergence of food commodiry prices and transportation
to schools on the school meals programme, triggering largely review of supplier prices and

costing.

7.8 Review of the Education Sector and Future Developments

The government of Kenya since the 20ZZ has been in the processing of reforming education.

The reform in Kenya's education sector is in line with emerging global trends in education.

Many countries continually review their education systems to ensure that they are suited
for a rapidly changing world and to address their context specific challenges.

Kenya is reforming its education to lay a strong foundation for human capital development
suited for transformation and innovation in a globalised and competitive world. The PWP -

ER's work also seeks to build on the achievements and trends in the education sector. The

Council has benefitted in the review ofthe Education sector in various fronts. First, the PWP-

ER acknowledges the Council's geographical spreads to be marginalized and thus the need

to review the name of the Council to reflect marginalized areas. Second, the PWP-ER has

given the Council expanded mandate including SMP, Low Cost boarding schools and ICT -
enabled learning in the marginalized areas of Kenya. Third, the PWP-ER has highlighted the

issue of 0ut of school children and thus given strong proposition of integration of Duksi and

Madrasa within formal education system in Kenya. All the council's future development will
be anchored on the expanded mandate as anchored in PWP-ER 2023.
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The Council has a reviewed its current strategic plan with an overall goal of aligning it to
the MTP IV of Vision 2030, NESSP 2022-2027 and education sector policies and guidelines
that will better help define its CSR statement.

8.1 Sustainability strategy and Profile

The National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya exists to transform lives. This is our
purpose; the driving force behind everything we do. It's what guides us to deliver our
strategy, putting the customer/Citizen first, delivering relevant goods and services, and
improving operational excellence. The Council recognizes its obligations to act responsibly,
ethically and with integrify in its interactions with all stakeholders be they employees,
customers, suppliers, neighbours and the environment as a whole.

The Sustainability Report for FY 2022/2023 is organized to reflect the financial, economic,
social and environment achievements that the Council has delivered on and to show where
our sustainabilify efforts are now focused in terms of priority. Below is an outline of the
organisation's policies and activities anchored in the Council's management practices that
are geared towards promoting sustainability.

i) Budgets.

As tradition, the National Treasury prepared and implemented the Medium-Term
Expenditure Framework (MTEF) by involving stakeholders in the entire budgetary cycle as

provided for in the PFM Act, 2012. The Council submits its programme-based budgets
reports to the National Treasury through MoE as per the budgetary timelines. The current
allocations made over the MTEF period are not sufficient to allow the Council to undertake
all its core activities. Engagements with the MoE & the National Treasury will be sustained
to ensure adequate funding for planned activities. Additionally, engagement with UNICEF,

The World Bank, Rockefeller Foundation and AfDB ongoing and pipeline projects through
have been directly committed in conducting various interventions in the course ofthe year

and beyond.

ii) Financial Reports.

Throughout the period under review, the Council ensured that financial discipline was

exercised. As a Semi-Autonomous Government Agency, the Council reports its financial
performance to the National Treasury through MoE by submitting quarterly reports in the

following month after the stated Quarter. The annual audited financial statements are

submitted to Parliament through the Public Investment Committee.

iii) Performance Contract Management.

This is the second cycle ofthe Council being on the Performance Contract cycle thus it strived

!o adhere to the performance contract management as per the government policy through
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the Ministry of Education (MoE). The Council having a mix of staff (new staff and deployed

from MoE] reports ifs performance to the Performance Contracting Department by

submitting quarterly reports. [n its inception year, ofthe FY 2021,/2022, the Council scored

a composite score of 3.54 in the Performance Contract evaluation which is equivalent to

score of"Good". This was conducted physically at the Council's boardroom and disseminated

through the Report on Evaluation of Performance of Ministries, State Corporations and

Tertiary lnstitutions for FY 2020 /202L.

8.2 Environmental performance

It is important to our employees to work for a socially responsible organization and our

approach therefore reflects our people. We recognize that our activities as a Council have an

impact on our communities and the general public. we are committed to not only managing

that impact but also using the public resources we have been entrusted with in making a real

and sustainable difference. To this end the Council is actively involved in supporting and

developing the local Community to make a lasting positive impact'

NACONEK',s environmental and social management/monitoring plans are anchored on

environmental laws, regulations, standards and best practices. The Council ensures

compliance with all relevant national and international environmental and other statutory

regulatory provisions that apply to its proiects as pertains to Iicensing/permitting for water

usage (abstraction license) and project implementation to ensure sound environmental

management Practice.

The Council undertakes regular environmental audits and has valid permits and licenses for

the same when implementing the NIWFESS pilot framework at Kuno Primary school in

Garissa county. The council is working towards implementation of two new proiects

IMPRESSED and TNCARE and strives to be in total compliance with following;

o The Environmental Management and coordination Act (EMCAJ of 1999 Amendment

2015 and the associated regulations;

. The Water Act of 2016 and Associated Rules/Guidelines;

o occupational safety and Health Act 2007 and Associated Rules and any other

regulations relating to environmental conservation and management. Proiect

implementation is guided by the international best practices that include the

lnternational Finance Corporation (lFC) Performance Standards on environment and

social sustainabilitY.

In overall, The Council actively contributes to social and environmental initiatives in the

republic through donation of time and funds. Further, the Council has in place policies that

clarifo its commitment to negating its impact on the environment. The Council works hard

to ensure that the negative impact our work has on the Environment is minimized.
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8.3 Employee Welfare

During the year under review, the council employed new staffand as well received deployed
staff from MoE. with these developments, the council has to put in place Employee welfare
& Benefits initiatives which are geared towards enhanced employee motivation, retention
and improvement of employees' health & wellbeing. These include; StaffRetirement Benefits
Scheme and in-house medical scheme for employees and their declared dependents. In
overall NACONEK promotes a harmonious working relationship and framework of
engagement for all its employees.

The council has a Human Resource committee which oversees the training function. The
council has a corporate skills inventory for all employees for purposes of identifuing the
available competencies and the required skills in order to plan for training or recruitment to
address the identified gaps and for succession management. In addition, the Council has
engaged an external consultant to conduct a Training Need Analysis (TNA) which is used to
identi$/ the existing gaps in the council and recommendation on how the gaps should be
filled.

Training opportunities offered to our staff on rotational basis and have increased the
competency pool, knowledge management and staff retention. Further, the Council
organizes knowledge-sharing sessions for employees to share knowledge and experiences
after attending various training programs. The sessions are aimed at ensuring that staff get
an opportunity for deeper understanding of what they learnt while achieving workforce
development. In order to ensure that professionalism is entrenched, all staff members are
sponsored for training targeted at earning points for professional good standing.

NACoNEK engages students/graduates from time to time on internship/attachments for a
continuous period of not more than six (6) months. The Council is an equal opportunity
employer and selection of graduates and students.

ln overall, the Council is an Equal Opportunities Employer which promotes diversity and
does not differentiate on grounds ofgender, ethnicity, religion, race, or physical abiliry. The
council carries out regular risk assessments to guarantee the wellbeing of employees and
visitors, in accordance with occupational Health and Safety regulations. The council
provides the tools to enable employee growth and fulfilment for Individuals and for the
organization to work together to make a difference as a team.

i) Market place practices-

The Council has put in place structures to protect vulnerable consumers from market
distortions that include charging of exorbitant prices which left without control may result
in the upsurge of anticompetitive practices such as lack of innovation, poor quality services,
among others.
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a Responsible competition practice.

The council while dealing with contractors and service providers is alive to the fact that
competition regulation in the professional sector has emerged as a key concern because of
the detrimental effect it has on consumers' access to such services. The Council
acknowledges the creation of a "competition culture" within the country which is

fundamental to the success of Kenyan Comperition Authoriry, and ultimately for the effective
implementation of competition law and policy. Through the regular weekly open
forums/discussions with listed and potential contractors and service providers, the council
sanitizes the business stakeholders on responsible competition practice with intention of
achieving the following;

1. Exposing corrupt activities and risks.

2. Keeping the public sector honest, transparent and accountable.

3. Stopping dishonest practices

4. Ensuring public sector employees act in the public interest.

b. Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

The Council as a public institution as well as state-owned enterprises needs to procure
goods, services and works to carry out its responsibilities and duties. [n general, public
procurement is one of the government activities most vulnerable to corruption. In addition
to the volume of transactions and the financial interests at stake, corruption risks are

exacerbated by the complexity ofthe process, the close interaction betvyeen public officials
and businesses, and the multitude ofstakeholders. Integrity risks occurin every stage of the
procurement process, from the needs assessment over the biding phase to the contract
execution and payment. The nature of the integrity risk may differ for each step, and red
flags include undue influence, conflict of interest, and various kinds of fraud risks.

With expanded mandate, that of coordinating the Schools Meals Programme that has

attracted huge financing from both government and development partners, the Council has

had to introduce a specific code of conduct for procurement officials, together with specific
guides and training, to help procurement officials apply these standards in their daily
practice. Ethics or integrity training for these officials in particular, has raised awareness,
development of knowledge and commitment, and foster a culture of integrity in the Council
and its clientele base.

iD Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Community engagement is one of the key pillars of corporate social responsibility ICSR),
alongside the concern with the workplace, the marketplace and the environment. The

Council is quite alive to the fact that community involvement can take many forms. The

Council has continued to support the Kuno School and the adjacent community in greening
the school with planting ofSudan grass, gliricidia tree as well as engaging with the adjacent
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communities in tree planting initiatives. These opportunities have mutually benefit the
Council and Kuno community by generating publicity, as well as improving the
neighbourhood around the school that is host to the NIWFESS pilot project,
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The Management submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended lune 30, 2023, which show the state ofthe Council's affairs'

i) Principal activities

The principat activities of the council are set out in the Basic Education Act 2 013 Article 94

(1)andthesixthSchedulewhichstipulatethefollowingorganization,smandate'

a]Initiatethedevelopment,implementationandreviewofpoliciesonallmatters
relating to education in the ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban

Informal Settlements of Kenya. e g Nomadic Education policy;

National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year end€d 30 June 202J

Mobilize funds and other resources from various sources for the development of

nomadic education in order to support relevant activities of the Council;

lnstitutionalize mechanisms for effective coordination, monitoring and evaluation of

theactivitiesofagenciesinvolvedintheprovisionofeducationintheASALareas,
Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban Informal Settlements of Kenya;

b)

c)

eJ

cl

dJlmplementguidelinesandensuregeographicalspreadofeducationactivitiesand
targets for the ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban Informal

Settlements of KenYa;

Estabtish appropriate linkages and partnerships with other participating

departments and agencies;

Determine standards and skills to be attained in schools and institutions oflearning

within the ASAL areas, Pockets of Poverty regions and urban Informal settlements of

Kenya and review such standards from time to time; and

Collate,analyseandpublishinformationoneducationactivitiesintheASALareas,
Pockets of Poverty regions and Urban Informal Settlements of Kenya'

0

ii) Results

The results of the National council for Nomadic Education in Kenya for the year ended 30

lune,2023 are set out on Pages 1-30.

iii) Directors

There were no Council members who served during the year under review'
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iv) Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory Audit of National Council for Nomadic
Education in Kenya in accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the
Public Audi 20t5.

Harun M, Yussuf, HSC

Secretary/Chief Executive Officer
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Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 require the Council to prepare

financial statements in respect of that of the entity which give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the entity at the end of the financial year and the operating results of the Entity

for that year/penod. The Directors are also required to ensure that the Entity keeps proper

accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the

Entiry. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe Entity.

The Council are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements,

which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Entity for and as at the end of the

financialyear (period) ended on fune 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) Maintaining

adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) Maintaining proper accounting records,

which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position ofthe Entity; (iiiJ

Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) Safeguarding the assets of the Entity; (vJ

Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) Making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Management accept responsibility for the Entity's financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropriate accouhting policies supported by reasonable and prudent

judgemens and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act,2072 entities should quote

applicable legislation as indicated under which they are regulated). The management are of
the opinion that the Entity's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
Entity's transactions during the financial year ended fune 30, 2023, and of the Entity's

financial position as at that date. The managment further confirms the completeness of the

accounting records maintained for the Entity, which have been relied upon in the preparation

ofthe Entity's financial statements as well as the adequacy ofthe systems ofinternal financial

control.

Nothing has come to the anention of the Management to indicate that the Entity will not

remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date ofthis statement

Approval of the financial statements

The Council's flnancial statements were approved on............ -..by

Harun M. YussuC HSC

Secretary/Chief Executive Officer

xxxl
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR NOMADIC
EDUCATION IN KENYA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Council for Nomadic
Education in Kenya set out on pages 1 to 25, which comprise the statement of financial

Reporl of lhe Audilor-General on Nutional Council /or Nomadic Educqlion in Kenyo /or the year ended 30 June,
2023
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position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets, statement of cash flows, statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya
and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya as at 30 June, 2023, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Basic Education Act, 2013 and the Public Finance Management Acl,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). lam independent of the National Council for Nomadic
Education in Kenya Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I

have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters in
the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Anomalies in the School Meals Program

The statement of financial performance reflects program expenses of
Kshs.5,637,146,889 which, as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, includes

Reporl oj the ,.ludttor-(;eneral on \ ational Council lor :l omodic Eluccttion in Kenva for the vor ended 30 June. )02l
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amounts of Kshs.1,099,575,605 and Kshs.4,456,831,741 in respect of school meals-
Kenya Primary Education Equity in Learning (KPEEL) Program and school meals -
Government of Kenya (GoK) Program, respectively, all totalling Kshs.5,556,407,346. The
following anomalies were however observed:-

lncluded in the program expenses is an amount of Kshs.17,892,900 which was
transferred to one hundred and thirty (130) schools in Kajiado, Nyeri, Embu, Makueni
and Kitui Counties, of the one hundred and thirty (130) schools, Forty-two (42) schools
did not have School Meals Program Committees (SMPC) contrary to Sections 2.2.1
and 2.2.2 of the Home-grown School Meals Programme lmplementation Guidelines
which provide for formation of SPMCs, and the roles and responsibilities of the
Committees as regards implementation of the programme activities.

It was further observed that some head teachers had not been sensitized on the
operations of the homegrown program and early childhood education pupils were not
included in the program despite being entitled.

It was revealed that the schools did not receive disbursements on a quarterly basis as
expected, resulting to funding deficit for purchase of foodstuffs for the learners.

iv. Some food handlers in the counties visited did not have medical certificates contrary
to Section 5.4.1 .3 of the Home-grown School Meals Programme lmplementation
Guidelines which requires the SMPCs select medically fit cooks who have valid
medical certificates and who are clean and wear proper uniforms including a clean
apron and head gear.

v. Some schools used temporary structures as kitchens, thus were exposed to the risk
of theft through break-ins or damage from weather elements. Further, some schools
did not have functional energy saving jikos, spacious, cemented-floor and well-
ventilated kitchens and tiled working surfaces for easy cleaning, proper drainage
systems and proper storage facilities for utensils contrary to Sections 5.2.3.2 and
5.2.3.3 of the Home-grown School Meals Program lmplementation Guidelines which
require the schools to maintain high standards of food safety and hygiene that are
acceptable.

vi. A total of Kshs.'l,424,000 was disbursed to three (3) primary schools in Kajiado
County whose Management did not open separate current accounts for the school
meals program funds. Further, a total of Ksh.2,216,400 was disbursed to six (6)
schools whose Management did not provide bank statements to confirm receipt of the
funds. This was contrary to Section 2.2.4(a) of the Home-grown School Meals
Program lmplementation Guidelines which requires each school to open a separate
current bank account with a cheque book from a bank of their choice for receipts and
disbursements of homegrown school meals program monies.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

Report ofthe Auditor-General on National Councilfor Nomadic Educatioh ih Kenya fbr the vear ended 30 June, 2023
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of a Governing Council

During the year under review, the Council operated without a governing Council, contrary
to Section 2 of the Sixth Schedule of the Basic Education Act, 2013. This was despite a
request by the Management through letter Ref. No. NACONEl(2/9A/ol.ll dated 15 July,
2021 to the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Education to constitute a Council of Members.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the Council in discharging its mandate could
not be confirmed.

2. Weak Controls over lnventory Management for School Meals Program

Note 13 to the financial statements discloses expenditure of Kshs.3,137,178,704 on
purchase of foodstuffs for School Meals Program. However, the Council did not have in
place an inventory management system for managing receipt and distribution of
foodstuffs. lnstead, this was done in MS Excel worksheets, a process which may be prone
to errors and manipulation.

ln the circumstances, the controls over the receipt and distribution of foodstuffs may not
have been effective.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lSSAls 2315 and 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report ofthe Awlitor-General on National Councillot Nomadic Education in Ketrya Jbr lhe vear ended 30 June, 2023
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Responsibilities of the Management and the Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as the Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Council's, ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to cease operations.

The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

The Council is responsible for overseeing the Council's, financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

Report ofthe ,.luditor-(ieneral on \ational Councilfitr Nomadic liducation in Kenya for lhe y,ear ended 30 June. 2023
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an effective way in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7( 1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non- compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufflcient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Council not to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Report ofthe .4uditor-General on National ('ouncil./br Nonodic Education in Kenya .[or the year ended 30 June. 2023
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a Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Council to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

2O March,2024

o
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Natlonal Councll for Nomadlc Educatlon ln Kcnya (NACoNEK)

Annual ReporB and Flnanclal statcrn nts For thc ycar Gndcd,oJune ro:l

12, Statement of Financial Performance for the year cnded 30 June 2023

Revenue from tron erchange transit(lions

Transfers from Other Government Entities

Transfers from Development Partners

Reuenrre ft'onr flrchangc tr.lnslctirtns

Finance income

'f otal Rel'enue

fxpenses

Kshs Kshs

5,12t,940,262 446,066,256

7 t,tt7,?t2,160 14899,380

6,239,152,422 ,160,965,636

I t2,225,380

6,25L,177,802 460,955,63,i

9 38,578,345 2,065,000

1,920,000

13,363,093

t00,402,427

180.809,225

111.455,088

15,208,380

125,223,213

Deputy Director- Accounts
& Finance
CPA lbrahim F. Qagane
ICPAK NO. 15819
Date:

Employee costs

Governing Council Expenses 10

Depreciation and amortization expense

Use of Goods and Services

Programs Expenses

Contracted Professional Services

Activity based Expenses

Total expenses

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 3l were signed by:

*
Chief Executive Officer

Harun M. Yussul HSC

Date:

6

11

t2

13

14

15

28,059,793

180,789,744

5,637,146,889

r37,928,779

L6,759,520

6,039,2(,3,O71



Natlonal Councllfor Nomadlc Educatlon ln Kcnya (NACONEK)
Annual RGports and Flnanclal Statcmcnts For thc ycar andcd 3o June zor3

13. Statement of Flnanclal Positlon as at 30 fune 2023

Kshs

Assets

Currcnt assets

Cash and cash equlvalents 195, t41, t 4c

Kshs

ln 2 7,5{.1,818

Total Current Assets L95,L4t,L49

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment L7 82,363,936

Intanglble Assets 18 10,152,000

Total Non-Current Assets 92,51S,936

Total Assels

Liabilides

Current Liabilldes

Trade and other payables 19

Retention

Total Llabllltles

Net Assets

Accumulated Surplus

Chief Executive Officer

Harun M. Yussui HSC

Date:

27,544,8r8

44,756,575

828,000

4S,58*,575

73,L29,393

1,000,000

1,000,o00

72,r29,394

Deputy Director Accounts
& Finance
CPA Ibrahim F. Dagane
ICPAK NO. 15819
Date:

247,657,OAS

1,000,000

20 2,412,960

3,112,960

284,244,L25

)
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l{atlonal Councll fq trlorradlc Educetlon ln Kcnya (!{ACONEK)

Annual R.ports and Flnanclel Statcnrcnts For thc ycar crdcd 30 ,unG lo23

1.1. Statement of Changcs in Nct Assetr for the yeer euded 30 fqnc 2023

Accumulated

Details IGhs.

As ar July 1, 2021 36,386,971

Surplus for the Period 35,742,423

As at 3oth lune 2022 72,t29,391

Atluly 1,2022 72,L29,394

Surplus for the Period 212,tt4,73L

284,2+1,t25

Deputy Director
Accounts & Finance

CPA lbrahim F. Dagane

ICPAK NO. 15819
Date:

1

,l

.i

As at 3Od June 2023

Chief Executive OiEcer

Harun M. Yussuf, HSC

Date:

3
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Natlonal Councll for Nomadlc Educatlon tn Kcnya (NACONEK)
Annull R.ports and Flnrnch_l StatGm.nts For th. ycar.ndod 30 Junc 2023

15.St tcEetrt of Cash Flows for the year endd 30 fuae 2023

Cash flows from operatlng acdvltles
Receipts

Transfers from MDAs

Kshs

Transfers from Development Partners

Finance Income

[otal Receipts

Payments

Employee cost

Council expenses

Use of goods and services ___
NACONEK program expenses

446,066,256

14,899,380

450,965,6:t6

Contracted professional services

Activity based Expenses

Total Payments

Net cash Ilows from operadng actlvides

Cash flows fuom investing activldes
Purchase of Property and Equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash flows used in investlng actlvlties

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at Period Start

Cash and cash equlvalents at Perlod End

2,065,000

1,920,000

99,902,427

180,809,225

111,45 5,088

16,208,380

4LL,360,t20
49,605,S16

(23,939,4921

{23,93e,4921

25,666,O24

1,878,794

27,5+4,818

4

IGhs

5,t21,940,262

L,tL7,272,L60

t2,225,380

6,25L,377,802

38,578,345

r80,789,744

5,637,L46,889

L37,928,779

16,759,520

6,Or1,203,278
t9 240,174,525

(60,578,t94)

(12,000,000)

(72,578,te41

167,596,331

15 27,544,8L8
15 t 9s,t{1,149



Natlonal Councllfor Nomadlc Education in Kenya (NACONEK)

Annual Reports and Flnancial Statements for the year ended 3o June zoz3

I (), \Ult('nrent ()f t.rrttlp:rt'isott r)l Bu(lg('t irn([ i( luirl \nrr) ltt]' trr'llrt. vr.:rr r.rrrl(-(t :itl lrrrrr. -ltt-l

I m l^4.''*"""J Ftnal Budget Actual basls i Performa[ce
i Difrerence

Kshs

2,927,655

28,059,793

77,321,703

t56,907,306

2,57 r,221

452,640

?ffi,2?4,3,.8

Percentage
UUllzatlon

Revenue

Transfers from MDAs

Transfers - Development Partners

Finance lncome

Total Income

Expenses

Employees Costs

Depreciation expense

Use Of Goods and Services

Program Expenses

Contracted Professional Services

Activity Based Expenses

TotalErycldHtrG

Surplus for the period

1,960,000,000

41,500,000 38,578,345

28,059,793

180,789,744

5,637,746,AA9

t37,928,779

16,759,520

258 ,1.1t .447

1,960,000,000 5,794,054,795

140,500,000

77,2t2,t60

1,960,OeO,mO *s r
1,377,802 

|
6,039,263,071

- -l-
272,rt4,7 3t

Kshs

3,76L,940,262

7,tt7,2t2,L60

12,225340

4,291,377,4O2

Kshs

1,960,000,000

Kshs

5,121,940,262

7,777,272,t60

\?,225,380

6,25t,377,AO2

Kshs

5,12t,940,262

r,tt7,272,760

t2,225,380

6,251,377,AO2 0

o/o

100

100

100

lOOo/o

41,500,000

258,711,447

3,834,054,195

140,500,000

t7,212,760

93

70

97

98

97

I

I
4,$n,fitfiz
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National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements for the year ended lo June 2o2J

Budget notes

t

a

The difference betvveen the original budget and the final budget is as a result ofsupplementary
budget process occasioned by the Parent Ministry and the National Treasury.

There was low absorption on use ofgoods and services due to delay in disbursement offunds
from the parent ministry.
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Notionol Council fot Nomodic Educolion in Kenyo

Annuo, Reporls ond Finonciol Slolemenls lor lhe yeor ended 30 June,2023

1. General Information

National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEKJ is established by and derives

its authority and accountability from rwin documents of Nomadic education in Kenya, 2010

and session paper number 1.4 of 2012. The council was established under section 94 of the

Basic Education Act, 2013 and officially launched in May 2015.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present

value.

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Standards IPSASJ, which allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also

requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying National CounciI for
Nomadic Education in Kenya (NACONEK) accounting policies. The areas involving a higher

degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to

the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of NACONEK.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act and

lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards 0PSAS). The accounting policies adopted

will be consistently applied to all the years presented.

3, Adoption of New and Revised Standards
i. New and omended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year

ended 30 June 2023,

Standard Effectivedateandimpact:

IPSAS 41:
Financial

lnstruments

Applicable: 1st fanuary 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment

of the amounts, liming and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:
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Nolionol Council for Nomodic Educolion in Kenyo
Annuol Repods ond Finonciol Slolemenls lor lhe year ended 30 June, 2023.

Effective date and impact:Standard

IPSAS 42: Social

Ben efits

Amendments to
Other IPSAS

resulting from
IPSAS 4I,
Financial

Instruments

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for
financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model
that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to
impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens
the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model
develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management
strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held
as part of the risk management strategy.

The standard will affect how the council will present and classifo
financial instruments.

Applicable: 1st fanuary 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social
benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial
statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(aJ The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entiry.

(bJ The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

[c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.

The management is in the process ofprocess ofassessing the impact of
this standard in respect to its operations.

Applicable: 1st lanuary 2023:

aJ Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently
omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

bl Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.
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Nolionol Council lor Nomodic Educolion in Kenyo

Annuol Repods ond Finonciol Sloremenrs for the ye ended 30 June, 2023.

Effective date and impact:Standard

Other
improvements to
IPSAS

cJ Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting

for financial guaranteed contracts which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

dl Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

The standard will impact the way the Council accounts for financial

instruments.

Applicable lst Jsnuary 202i

IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Government Secror, Amendments to refer to the latest System of
National Accounts (SNA 2008J.

IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite social

security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

IPSAS 29; Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS

handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 41 which is applicable

from 1't lanuary 2023.

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in

the year ended 30 lune 2023.

Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 43 Applicable 1st 1snuary 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The ob.lective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of
financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease Iiabilities.

a

a

a

ll

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current
Assets Held

Applicable 1st January 2025

The Standard requires,

9
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Standard Effective date and impact:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the
depreciation of such assets to cease and:

for Sale and
Discontinued
Operations

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of
discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of
financial performance.

The standard has no impact on the Council operations

Iu Early adoption of standards

The Council did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financialyear

or the entity adopted the following standards early.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) ller rrtrri' l{(.( 'rgnilr('n

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured

at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and
propertyJ if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic
benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured

reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of financial position and
realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that
has been acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding
to determine interest income each period.

10
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The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly on June

2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved

budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The

additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the

respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entiry recorded

additional appropriations on lhe 2022-2023 budget. The budgetary basis adopted in the

preparation of the statement of Comparison of budget and actual was Cash based.

[t] tilrrlg' I , ir,ir l, rl,',i

r ) f'r,,p, r l\ l)l ltl rrrrl er1r,i1111, qlr

tl) l),'grr Ir r,rIr(|rl

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are

required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and

equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is

acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is
initially measured at its fair value.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of financial
performance on a straight-line basis to write down the cost ofeach asset or the re-valued

amount to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates in use are:

Motor Vehicles

ICT Equipment

Partitions and Fittings

Office Equipment

4 years

3 years

8 years

8 years

25%

)3-3%

12.j%

12.5%

el lrrl.rrrp.lrlrle .rssr't.,

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date ofthe exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected
in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

11
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f) .{nrrrrtisation itn(l irup;lirnleut ol itrt.utgible assets

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
intangible asset. All intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the
carrying amount of an intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down
immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.

The estimated useful life of the Accounting Software is 5 years.

g) lnventories

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions ffor no cost or for a nominal costJ, the cost of
the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. After initial recognition, inventory -

is measured at the lower ofcost and current rep[acement cost. Inventories are recognized
as an expense when deployed for utilizarion or consumption in the ordinary course of,
operations of the Council.

12



Noliono, Council lor Nomodic Educolion in Kenyo

Annuol Reporls ond Finoncio, Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30 June.2023

l,l

Provisions are recognized when the Council has a present obligation flegal or
constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Council expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in

the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

The Council does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council in the notes to the

financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become

virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the

asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized

in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.

i)

it

rl

IN

The Council does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

k)

The Council creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Currently,
the Council has a retained earnings reserves which represent the accumulated surplus and

capitalized Assets.

The Council recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The

effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

l

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange

on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the statement offinancial position reporting date by applying the exchange

rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from

the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially

1l
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recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which
they arise.

rrJ

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Council
Members and the CEO.

1.' )

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturify of three months or less,

which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are sub.iect to insignificant
risk ofchanges in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank
ofKenya and at various commercial banks at the end ofthe financial year. For the purposes
of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash
imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which were not
surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

!,1

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended
or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

q| ,

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact
on the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023.

5, Sigrrificant ludgments and Sources of Estimation Unceftainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with TPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset

or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainry at

the reporting date, that have a signiFicant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

14
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developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control

ofthe Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment of experts.

b) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technolory and

processes.

c) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability offunding to replace the asset.

e) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

The Council had no provisions under IPSAS 19 in the year under review

15
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rJ

Note 6r Transfers from Other covt Entities. I FY 2,022.2023

Kshs

4,504,579,456

6t7,360,806

F\ t02t-'t022
Kshs

+*o,,ooe ,zso-
t

1

+

State Dept. for Basic Education

Sports Fund

Note 6(a)
Name of the

Endty
sending the

grant

Amount
recotnlzrd to
Statemetrt of

Finencial
performance

Kshs

4,504,579,456

6L7,360,806

Amount
deferred
under

deferred
income

IGhs

FY 2022-2023 Fy 2021"-2022

Basic
Education
Sports Fund

IGhs

4,504,579,456

517,360,806

IGhs

446,066,256

Note 7: Grants from Development Partners Fv 2022-2023 FY 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

World Bank 1,100,000,000

UNICEF t7,2t2,t60 14,899,380

Note 8l Flnance lncome FY 202t-2022
Kshs

Interest Income

Note 9: Employee Costs Fv 2022-2023 Fy 2021-2022

IGhs Kshs

Basic Salary and Allowances 36,920,345

1,608,000Extraneous Allowance 1,440,000

62,5,000

Fy 2022-2023

12,225,380

Ikhs

Interns Student Allowance

16
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Note l0: (iover ning Cotrnci[ [.rpenses

Chairman's Honoraria

F\' 2022-20t.|

IGhs

t'Y 202 l-2022
Kshs

t,920,000

I

+

Note t t: Depreciation & Amortization

Property, plan! and equipment

Intangible Assets

I

'I

1

FY2022-2023 I

Kshs

2#8a,ii3
2,676000

FY 202 r-2022
Kshs

n,oal,ogz
276,0;Oo

I

t
i

ote 12: Use of Goods and Services

Advertising

Audit fee

Bank Charges

Catering sen/ices

Domestic Travel and Subsistence

Foreign Travel & subsistence

Fuel and oil

General Printing and stationery

ICT Accessories and consumables

Motor vehicle maintenance

Office Utilities

Rant expenses

158,330 t33,789

7,394,356 8,189,zrt

10t,287,089 41,085,850

10,036,307 5,955,709

5,628,886

1,240,700

1,527,200

3,928,714

33,236,722 25,904,5L4

I

I

t
I

t
+
I

I

I

1
l

I

t
+

Fv 2022-2023

Kshs

1,L25,L04

1,000,000

FY 202l-20'.12

Kshs

533,600

500,000

3,092,74L

6,433,209

2,233,689

- 2,4rW55

6,546,6L8

L,444,778

6,323,542

1,998,951Training/Workhops

Withholding tax on interest 1,833,807

It/ r

17
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Note .l .l: Pnrl;rams Expenses

Review of Nomadic Education Policy

Facilitation of NIWFESS pilot project

Implementation of NIWFESS

Smart Access Pilot Face

lntegration of Duksi and Madrassa

School Meals Program -KPEEL W/B

School Meals program -GoK

110,600

9,32+,000

487,L85

7,77 4,900

67,L07,544 163,082,850

4,999,600

4,797,400 4,464,690

1,099,575,605

l

+

I

l
I

I

t

i

Fr'2022-202.1

Kshs

Fy 202t.2022

Kshs

1

i'
l

1

1

1

t

I
t

4,456,83t,74L

Note l4: Contracted Professional s^ervices

Strategic Indicatives Management

Climate Change Initiative and Management

Home Grown Food Solutions

lnternal Capacity Building

Legal Liaison and Advisory Services

Review ofthe Strategic Plan

Staff recruitment

Resource Mobilization

Pension seryices

Noted 15: Actlvity Eased Program Expenses

AVISI

0Htcsp

FY 20'22-20'2.t FY 202t-2022

Kshs Kshs

4,255,623

48,392,890 42,787,gts

13,354,500 47,440,540

4,000,000

2,280,000

tL,4s7,664

9,120,000

I

+i
l

1-
2,000,000

L6,t5L,289

52,800,000

950,000

Fv 202L-2022

Kchs Kshs

309,000

F\ 2022-2023

18
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\l,tt Itr' ( .rsh arrrl ( rrsh lrqrrir llerrts

Cash at Bank

Pl.202l-201r
Kshs

L95,t41,L49

r\'102t.2022
Kshs

27,544,818.00

IK; I_ffi
lrotr' lti(it | .Llt.tlt rii ,rt
Cash

iinancial institution

HFC

National Bank-

],\ t()22 l0r I lt 1021.2022

Acc No

97838t7569

L040207060700

Kshs

413,195

L94,727,954 27,544,8t8

Kshs

i

I

I

I

I

I

i

I

I

I

Nole In: ])ropertr Plarrt & Equipnrent

-tte
_Cost 

at lst ruly 2021

Additions

(bst irr 3{lth Iune,lt'lli

Costat 1st Iuly 2022

additions

Cost ar -10 lure ll)2J

!:ll9h!i:
As lst July 2021

Charge for theperiod

As .t .roth lune 20 2l

As lst luly 2022

Charge for the period

.{s rt 30 lune ?(12:l

NetBo(,k !llut: Jft lttllr ]l
rler llorrk Vtrlrrt -{r lUu,' Ir.) l..l

I

I
It

1

L
I

I

( )ftlce
Equipm€nt

ICI
[:qulprn ent

$

430,550

430,650

430,650

77,598,064

LA,0ZA,7L+

53,831

L07,663

107,663

2,253,589

2,36t,252

322,988

ts.667,462

12.5%

s3,831

-,]

33.3lVo

8,345,230

4,836,776

13,182,006

13,182,006

27,263,490

34,145,496

2,93A,220

4,389,508

7,327,8ZA

7,327 ,828

11,470,350

L8,79A,nA

5,8S4,178

L5,647 sta

t9
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Note [8: lntangible Asset-s

Cost as at 1st luly 2022

Additions

Cost as at 30th lune
Amortization Rate

Amortization at start of period

Charge for the period

Accumulated Amortization

I+

i

t'\ 2022,-202.i

Krhg

1,380,000

12,000,000

13,380,000

20o/o

552,000

2,676,000

3,228,000

Ft' 2021 :21t22

Kshs

1,380,000

1,380,000

200/o

276,000.00

276,000.00

552,000.00

I

t

Note l9: Tradt'and Other Payable'- F\ 202',2-202.t

IGhs

1,000,000

FY 2021..7,02',2

Kshs

Audit Fees 1,000,000

Sundry Creditors

Aging analysis: There are no payables just audit fees provisions that are under one yean

Note 20r R€tentions and Deposits FY 2021-2022

Kshs

Deposits

Aging analysis: 10070 of retention deposit are under one yean

1

1

FY 2022-2023

2,4t2,960

Kshs

20
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I r rl I r.,, ,1.,,11,

Kshs

202,11+,731

l\ ,r I

Kshs

35,742,423Surplus for the year before tax

Adiusted for:

Depreciation

Working Capital ad.iustments

Decrease in Payables

ilfet Garh f,ow from opcratlnS aGtvldes

28,059,793 13,363,093

2NO,L7+,529

500,000

49,605,516

,r. ril .i \l : r!,, n ! r1l

The Council activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidiry risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Council's overall risk management programme

focuses on unpredictability ofchanges in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.

The entity does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only

extended to customers with an established credit history.
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The Council's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The Council has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be

unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash

equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments. Management assesses the credit quality of
each customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external assessment in
accordance with limits set by the Senior Managers. The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the entity's management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the

Entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account ofthe value ofany

collateral obtained is made up as follows:

Total
amount

Kshs

Fully
performing

Kshs

Past due

Kshs

lmpaired

Kshs

As at 30 fune 2023

Bank balances

Total

As at 30 lune 2022

Bank balances

Total

195,141,r49 tgs,t4t,t49

19s,141,149 tgs,t4r,t49

27,544,8t8 27,544,8t8

27,544,81A 27,544,AL8

ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidify risk management rests with the Council's Senior
Management, who have built an appropriate Iiquidity risk management framework for .

the management of the entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous
monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

iii) Market risk

The Entity has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk.
faced by the Entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness

of its internal accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from -

)2



iv)

Retained Earnings

Nofionol Council for Nomodic Educolion in KenYa

Annuol Reporls ond Finonciol Slolemenls lor lhe yeor ended 30 June,2023.

changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange

rates which will affect the Entity's income or the value of its holding of financial

instruments.

In the year under review the Council did not have market risk exposure

Capital Risk Management

The ob.jective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Council's

ability to continue as a going concern. The Council capital structure comprises of the

following funds:

Kshs.

284,244,t25

Kshs.

72,L29,393

Total Funds

TotaI Borrowings

Less: Cash And Bank Balances

Net Debt/(Excess Cash And Cash Equivalentsi

28+,21+125 "2.I',]9.3c3

r9s,t4l,t49 27,544,818

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Council, holding 100% equity

interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all Iong-term lenders of the

entity, both domestic and external.

Other related parties include:

i) The Parent Ministry
iD Council Members

iii) Key Management
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Relates Party Disclosures

11

I
-f

+
i

++

zo22-2o23

IGhs

2021 2022

Xstrs

a) Grants /Transfers from the Government

Grants from National Government 5,t2L,940,262 446,066,2#

Grants from Development Partners L,1t7,2L2,L60 14,899,3s

Totel o,iie4{2,+nl {60,965,6$
b) Key management compensadon

Chairman's Emoluments 1,920,0m

c) Transactions relating to electricity and water are paid as part of rent thus the coundl
has no direct transactions with Kenya Power and Nairobi Water Company.

24. Events after the Repordng Period

There were no material adiusting and non- adjusting events after the repordng period.

25. Ultimate and Holdlng Entity

The Council is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Ministry of Education. Its
ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

26. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (lGhsl.
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I.S.Appendices
Appendix 1: Progress on Follow up of Auditor Recommendations

ll r'f(.t r'r! ar
\r, rtrr fhc

'r\lr.t Il.I l

rrrr.iit l{r.yr rr

lSsrtr 1)ltsr.t'r',ttl(rtt\ tt'(ltll \u(litllr lllltr.rgr.rtr,.trl , ofl||ir,.r]
r, ttr'

, iit ..,,t, ,.ri

iir.s,rlr.r.rl,

.,!l

l),. iri

1 Low Capital Budget Absorption.

z Unresolved Prior Year Audit Issues.

3 Lack of Governing Council.

The low capital budget absorption was

as a result of delays in the release of
funds from The National Treasury
through the Ministry of Education.

The council is in the process of
addressing the prior year audit issues

before the end ofthe financial year.

The names ofthe council members has

been forwarded to the Cabinet

Secretary, Ministry of Education for
onward appointments and publication.

Not resolved

Not resolved

Not resolved

luly 2024

luly 2024

luly 2024

t

Chief Executive Officer

Date:
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Notiono, Councilfor Nomodic Educotlon in Kenyo
Annuo, Reporrs and Finonclol Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30 June, 2023.

Appendix Il: Proiects implemented

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners and/ or the Government.

Proiect title Proiect Number Donor Period/
duration

Separate
donor
reporting
required as
per the
donor
agreement
(Yes/No)
NO

Consolldated
in these
financial
statements
(Yes/No)

YESKenya Primary Education Equity in Learning Program (KPEEL) P17 6867 World Bank 5 yrs

Status of Proiects completion

Proiect Total proiect
Cost(Kshs)

Total expended
to date(Ikhs)

Completion o/o to
date

Budget Actual Sources of
funds

2,969,250,0OO 1,100,000,000 WortdBankKenya Primary
Education Equity in
Learning Program
(KPEEL)

2,969,250,O00 r,100,000,000 370/o
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l,lollonol Council lor Nomodic Educalion in Kenyo
Annuol ieporh ond Firnonckrl SHcmcnh for lhc yeor endcd 30 Junc, 2023.

Appendix IV: Transfers from Other Government Entities

MDA
Transferring
Funds
Ministry of
Education-
State Dept. for
Basic
Education
Ministry of
Youth Affairs,
The Arts and
Sports-State
Department
for Sports

lrrt.el

Date
received as
per bank
statement

Nature:
Recurrent/
Development

Total Amount
KES

Statement of
Financial
Performance

Deferred
lncome

Receiva
bles

Others -

must be
specific

Total
Transfers
during the
Year

4,504,579,456

6L7,360,A06

Capital
Fund

30/06/2023 Recurrent 4,504,579,456 4,504,579,456

25/07/2023 Recurrent 677,360,806 6L7,360,806

i 1r'r (){(l llrl -l-l i,,llr; rj,:' 51.
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Notiono, Counc,'l for Nomodic Educolion in Kenyo
Annuol Reporls and Finonciol Slalements lot the yeo, ended 30 June, 202i

Appendix V- lnter-Entity Confirmation Letter

Confirmation ofamounts received by National Council for Nomadic Education in Kenya as at 3oth lune 2023 from Ministry ofEducation
State Department ofEarly learning and basic Education and Ministry ofYouth Affairs, The Arts and Sports State Department For Sports.

Reference Number Date Disbursed

Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SAGA/Fund] (Kshs) as at 3oth Iune
2022

lnter-
Recurrent Development Ministerial Total

(A) (B) (c) (D)=(A+B+G)

Amount
Received by

INACoNEKI
(Kshs) as at 3oth

June 2023
(El

37 ,224,38r
37 ,228,381.
37,2283A1
73,790,096

1,,966,693,389
36,895,048
37 ,22A38\
37 ,228,381.
37 .228,381
31,,27 6,8?9
31,,276,879

1,950,000,000
31,,27 6,A79

150,000,000
1,100,000,000

Differences
(Kshs)

tFl=tD-El

M inistry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
Ministry of Education
(KPEEL-wBl
Ministry of Youth Affairs,
The- Arts and Sports
Total

5-AUG-2022
12-SF.P'|-2022

.o6-ocT-2022
01-N0v-2022
01-N 0v- 2 02 2

29-OEC-2022
06-FEB-2023

29-MAR-2023
06-APR-2023
30-MAY-2023
08-luN -2023
19-lU N -2023
30-lu N -2023
30-lu N -2023
15,FEB-2023

Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent
Recurrent

37 ,228,381
37,228,38t
37 ,228341
73,790,096

r,966,693 3A9
36,895,048
37,228,381
37,2283A7
37 ,228,381
31,27 6,87 9

3L,276,879
1,960,000,000

31,,276,879
150,000,000

1.100,000.000

61,7,360,806

6,22]^,g40.,261

61,7 ,360,40625-lAN-2023 Recurrent
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6d Ftrotrcld Sioirmeirlr yaqlu fnG cndod Juna,30 2023

In confirm that the amounts show[ abotre are ermcct as of tlre &tc indicatcd.

Head of Accountants department of benefldary Endty:

Name: CPA IBRAIIIi{ F RAII DAG I{E Slgn Datet30/0612023

k. - ..:-:r ._
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Nolionol Council for Nomodlc Educolion in Kenyo
Annuot Repois ond Finonciot Slotements fot lhe yeor ended 30 June, 2023.

Appendix Vl: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Proiect
Name

Proiect
Description

Plantrng of trees

Proiect
Obiectives

To rncrease tree
cover as per the
presidential
drrectrve.

Proiect
Activities

Planting of 700
Trees.

Source
of

Funds

Implementing
Partners

Tree
Plantrng
Exercrse

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

Kshs
70,000

Gok NACONEK

lo



r. 
-r!=,'*-'t:

*:..- . . r.-*!*

Programme

-

Appendix VII: Disastcr Expenditure Rcporting Template

Column I Column lI Column
llt

Disaster
Type

od HroneEr Siolrnr.nt lu ll?E yoo en*d 30 Junc, 2923.

Column IV (lolumn V

Sub-
programme

i Expenditure j

item I

Column
vt

Amount
(Kshs.)

Colum n
vil

CommentsCategory of disaster related Activity that
require expenditure repordng
(1e9po1s9f rgcoveryr/mitigation/p reparedness)

There were no expenditures relating to Disaster Management

ll


